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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby present
the audited annual results of the Group for the Year.

The year of 2020 was a challenging year full of
instability caused by the global outbreak of COVID-19
(“COVID-19"), the Group has implemented measures
to control costs while strengthening its product lineup.
The Group also worked closely with suppliers to ensure
continuity of its inventory to minimise the impact of any
logistics delays.

For our primary business, the Group will continue to
grow our strengths in expertise for semiconductor
products with focus on quality, environmentally friendly
and energy-saving solutions. We will keep on investing
resources in circuitry design, transferring and fitting the
circuitry layout onto printed circuit boards (“PCBs”),
designing appropriate software where needed,
developing prototype evaluation boards, sourcing and
suggesting specific brands of Integrated Circuit(s)
(“ICs”) required, and then producing reference designs
according to customers’ requirements or specifications.

During our long research and development history,
we have accumulated much experience and capacity
in the development of application solutions and have
established an outstanding technical team. We would
make every endeavor to explore more business
opportunities in different application solution so as to
strengthen the Group’s financial position. In addition, the
Company will actively explore the possibilities of external
strategic investment and cooperation, in particular
business opportunities which can enhance the stability
and diversity of our product offerings and revenue.

Nonetheless optimism is emanating from the
semiconductor industry, fuelled by the new 5G
technology adoption in the PRC and worldwide. A
strong uptake of 5G application will drive demand
for large variety of related semiconductors. In China,
commercialized 5G technology is now available in many
cities. In the face of rising demand for 5G applications,
the Group will expand its 5G product portfolio and
improve the competitiveness of its products based on
market needs.

LAM KEUNG
Chairman
31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

b Y
SR EREPY
2020 2019 Changes
20204 20194 28
USD’000 usD’000
FETT FET
Key financial information TEUBEHR
Revenue WA 153,919 101,461 51.7%
Gross profit EH 9,375 11,474 (18.3%)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ANA G %A A FE(L
owners of the Company FEFHE 2,021 2,513 (19.6%)
As at/ As at/
Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 Changes
122020 R 20194F
128318, 12A318/
BEZH B E%ZAB
IEEE IEFE by )
USD’000 usD’000
FETT FET
Total assets BEBE 67,789 58,465 15.9%
Total liabilities BEER 35,837 28,676 25.0%
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREFED 6,042 6,263 (3.5%)
Total equity T MR 31,952 29,789 7.3%
Key financial ratios FTEMBLE
Gross profit margin kS 6.1% 11.3% (5.2pp)
Net profit margin F = 1.3% 2.5% (1.2pp)
Basic and diluted earnings per &% A K #5E 2 F
share (HK cents) (BAL) 1.96 2.81 (30.2%)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group primarily engage in the sourcing and sale
of IC products and the provisions of IC application
solutions and value-added services to suit the needs of
our customers. Our business is focused on fast-growing
and emerging market categories, with an emphasis on
providing environmentally-friendly and energy-saving
solutions.

After years of continuous efforts, the Group has become
a well-established fabless semiconductor application
solutions provider specialising in the provision, design
and development of IC application solutions and sale
of ICs for consumer and industrial products. The aim
of the Group is to strengthen our market position within
the IC application solutions industry by increasing our
market share and enhancing the quality of our services.
We believe that this will bring sustainable growth to our
business and create long-term value in the Group for our
Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group focuses on the consumer and industrial
product sectors, we source and sell IC products and
electronic components. We also provide IC application
solutions and value-added services to suit the needs
of our customers. While our application solutions can
be utilised in a wide range of electronic products, we
specialise in the following five major product categories:
(i) mobile devices and smart charging; (ii) motor control;
(iii) sensors and automation; (iv) light-emitting diode
(“LED”) lighting; and (v) radio frequency (“RF”) power.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t ol & 5 4T

Breakdown of our revenue generated by product # Z2020F12A31BLtFE([FEE NN
category for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the & ZE2019F12A31BIEFE((Mi—FEE])
“Year”) and 31 December 2019 (the “Preceding Year’) ZEWRBAZ oUW ABEMEZIMT
is set forth below:

2020 2019
20204 20194
UsD’000 % USD’000 %
FETT % FET %
Mobile devices and smart B RELRESGRERE
charging 116,475 75.7 76,550 75.4
Motor control = 17,042 1.1 11,843 1.7
Sensors and automation R EE N 8 81 14,480 9.4 4,633 4.6
LED lighting LEDER B 3,759 2.4 4,492 4.4
RF power 5 38 E R 2,163 1.4 3,943 3.9
Total =SEp 153,919 100 101,461 100.0
Breakdown of our gross profit by product category for XFEERA—FEREREBERNSEH
the Year and the Preceding Year is set forth below: HEFBFAMASHIN 0T -
2020 2019
20204 20194
UsD’000 % UsD’000 %
FETT % FET %
Mobile devices and smart BEHEHEREETE
charging 4,257 45.4 7,700 671
Motor control = 1,733 18.5 1,721 15.0
Sensors and automation BN B E 2,063 22.0 613 5.4
LED lighting LED R A9 801 8.5 462 4.0
RF power 57 S & IR 521 5.6 978 8.5
Total B 9,375 100.0 11,474 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mobile devices and smart charging

The mobile devices category focuses on products
utilising low power radio frequency connectivity and
signal transmissions. ICs in the mobile devices category
are antennae-centric products, which enable and
improve the wireless functions (such as 2G/3G/4G/
LTE and wifi connectivity) of the antennae of cars,
mobile phones and tablets, smart watches and other
wifi-enabled devices. The Group assist customers in
developing the application solutions for such ICs to
match their product requirements and restrictions.

Smart charging is a power management technology
used in smart devices such as smart phones, computers
and battery packs to provide shorter charging times for
these devices. By utilising smart charging ICs, smart
devices boost the level of power to be delivered and
thus charge the batteries of the smart devices at faster
speeds, thereby shortening the overall charging time.
Smart charging ICs also gauge various attributes of the
batteries, such as the levels of charge and the thermal
conditions of the batteries, and reduce the level of power
delivered to the batteries when they are nearly full or
getting overheated.

Motor control

Motor control ICs are used in modern motors where
the speed and torque of the moveable parts of a
machine need to be controlled. These motor control
applications can be applied to a wide array of devices,
from household items such as fans, to heavy industrial
equipment such as forklifts and robots. Motor control
application solutions are mainly focused on the ICs used
on variable-frequency drive (“VFDs”). VFDs are a type
of motor controller that controls the speed and torque of
an electric motor by varying the frequency and voltage of
its power supply. By using VFDs, motors are able to save
energy, control performance, reduce noise levels of the
motor, and improve the lifespan of machines.

Customers of the motor control category are generally
manufacturers of motors. Motor control solutions of the
Group include applications for the controls of ceiling
and vertical fans, electronically commutated fans,
air-conditioning systems, electric cars and bikes, robotic
arms, pumps, washing machines, compressors, sewing
machines, industrial power tools such as electric picks,
and medical power tools such as drills.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERET RS

Sensors and automation

Sensors are used to detect changes or events in the
environment. When the sensor detects a change,
it provides a corresponding output to the device to
meet requirements of data and signal transmission,
processing, storage, display, recording and control of
information. There are many kinds of sensors, which are
used to measure, among other things, force, distance,
temperature, sound, light, electrical currents, magnetic
fields.

Our application solutions for sensor ICs are coupled
together with automation solutions that assist the
customer’s product in automatically detecting and
reacting to various circumstantial changes in the
environment. The Group provides application solutions
for our radar sensors to be used on (i) automobile
vehicles to assist drivers with parking and provide
auto-drive functions; (ii) unmanned aerial drones in
maintaining stability of flight and avoiding obstacles;
(iii) security systems that link with videos to detect,
recognise and track moving objects; (iv) traffic
monitoring systems to measure speed of moving vehicles
and to monitor traffic congestion; and (v) smart lighting
systems that have motion sensing. We also provide
application solutions for pressure sensors to be used in
smart phones and smart watches for detecting altitude.

RF power

RF, or radio-frequency, is widely used in the transmission
of signals, and has a long-distance transmission
capacity. RF is widely used in the fields of wireless
communication.

1 0 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RF power means the power supply devices which are
used to generate and stabilise RF power. RF power
equipment is generally composed of a RF signal source,
a RF power amplifier (which is an electronic device
that provides power gain) and an attenuator (a device
that reduces the power of a signal without distorting
its waveform), and a receiver (such as those found
on the rooftops of buildings). The Group’s RF power
products are used in cable television (which is a system
of delivering television programming to subscribers by
RF signals transmitted through cables), and broadband
networks, such as fibre to the home (FTTH, where the
fibre optic cable carries the RF signal to the domestic
home) and fibre to the building (FTTB, where the fibre
optic cable carries the RF signal to a building). Our
customers in the RF power category are generally
engaged in broadcasting and signal transmissions, and
include operators of television and radio broadcasting.

LED lighting

LED lighting systems utilise LEDs, or light emitting
diodes, to provide energy efficient, aesthetic and
long-life lighting solutions. LED lighting solutions are
cost-effective and have a wide range of applications and
can be used indoors, outdoors, and for special lighting
effects, such as spot-lights or stage lighting.

An LED lamp or bulb is typically comprised of several
components, including the LED which acts as light
source, the LED driver IC that regulates power to the
LED, reflector cups that refract and reflect the light, and
the lens that focuses the light beams.

LED application design capabilities is considered to
be well developed and mature. One of our main design
applications for LED lighting systems was to provide
dimming features for LED lamps or bulbs. Although
it appears simple to design a dimmer for lighting
systems, it is in fact a challenge as LEDs and traditional
incandescent lamps operate very differently. If not
done correctly, the dimmer will cause instability in the
electrical current, which may cause flickering in the
LED lamp or bulb, and affect its dimming range and
performance. Our years of experience in and familiarity
with this product category enable us to provide fast and
comprehensive application solutions for our LED lighting
customers.

CEYERE PR

RFERIERIEFELELREBERFERMNER
BE RFERIEBFTHRFERIRE - RF
NMERRFZ(—ERBEINEREE) -
TRE(—EREERAEAN TS HMHHE
BEREE)RBEREZ(WMEREFEIR
REVEK - AEBRFERERE AR
ERER(BERERBBRBEEURFEHR
FRARMBFEEESEHBENRR)NER
WP (KBEEP RFIEHRAR
HEREBRERI) R DE (e E D
B RFERBANCEHXINETF)) o &M
RFERBANEFBENXESERLER

LED f% BH

LEDRRRB R A A AR R E R anae -
EERRSWRABRFR - LEDBRAKE
RAREMAURFZEEAREZ  THARE
N BN HRBHARR (OB ESE

AEX) -

LEDE B eBERESE T TH B
LED (fE&Y)R) - LEDEEENEEIC (FHEFLED
BR) - REMGTFMRE R REE
(BEXFR) -

HMRRLEDEAIEARAENESER T
R - HPLEDRARGH —EEE
RETEMEANELEDE &8 AFHH
- BESRARMRAAXLIEUG
5 - BRELED R B E 5 83 & & E1F AT H
R - Hitil ABKE - WHREFTAR - s
BERERTRE  MEXTEHLEDE
HEBEEATERMTERCHE KK
B ZFHYZRERBRINEFERETH#
EHRMEARBLEDRARTFREREEE
MERBRNTER -

BEEEMEERARF 20204 FH

11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t ol & 5 4T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total revenue
increased by 51.7% to US$153.9 million. The growth
was mainly driven by the sales increase of the Group's
solutions, in particular applications in the mobile devices
and smart charging.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
decreased by 18.3% year-on-year to US$9.4 million,
which was mainly due to main chips used in loT
communication modules in the mobile devices and smart
charging which generally has lower profit margin. Gross
profit margin decreased from 11.3% to 6.1%.

Other Income

The Group’s other income mainly included bank interest
income, exchange gain and government grants. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, other income increased
to US$891,000, mainly due to the exchange gain and
government grants.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of
salaries and benefits for staff, transportation costs,
travelling expenses, office utility expenses, business
entertainment and marketing expenses and depreciation
costs. During the Year, the Group’s selling and
distribution expenses amounted to US$2.5 million,
an increase of approximately US$0.8 million when
compared with 2019, due to (i) an increase in the staff
salaries and bonus in aggregate by approximately
US$0.6 million, and (i) an increase in the postage and
courier charge in aggregate by approximately US$0.2
million.

1 2 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses mainly consist of
administration expenses including salaries and benefits
for the management, administrative, operation support
and financial personnel, administrative costs and
depreciation expenses relating to property, plant and
equipment used for administrative purposes.

During the Year, general and administrative expenses
amounted to US$4.0 million, representing an increase of
60.8% or US$1.5 million year-on-year, which was mainly
attributable to the effect of (i) an increase of director’s
remuneration, staff salaries and bonus in aggregate
by approximately US$1.1 million and (ii) legal and
professional fee.

Finance Costs

During the Year, finance costs amounted to US$0.9
million, representing an decrease of 13.4% when
compared with 2019.

Income Tax Expense
During the Year, income tax expense was US$0.5 million
(2019: US$1.0 million).

Profit for the Year

As a result of the above factors, the Group’s profit for the
Year decreased by 19.6% from US$2.5 million recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to US$2.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t ol & 5 4T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group maintained a satisfactory
liquidity position supporting business growth. As at
31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of US$6.0 million (31 December 2019:
US$6.3 million).

The Group recorded net current assets of US$23.0
million (31 December 2019: US$27.5 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the
Group was 37.3% (31 December 2019: 18.9%), which
represents net debt divided by the total equity plus net
debt. Net debt includes bank borrowings, promissory
notes, bills payables, less cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits.

The Group increased its bank loans mainly for securing
capital for its business development. At as 31 December
2020, the Group had bank loans amounting to US$7.1
million (2019: US$1.4 million).

The annual interest charge of the bank borrowings
during the Year ranged from 1.25% to 4.19% (2019: from
4.2% to 5.0%).

1 4 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020

MEBELERUBEER
REER AEEEBBRENRSESMNK
M FEBFER - R2020F12A31H » &

EENRE MRS EEYMACOEEET
(2019F12A31H : 6.3 EETT) °

AEEHGRHEE FEH2308EETT
(2019%F12A310 : 2758 ET) °

R2020%F12A310 - AEEBEMEXREBFE L
R 537.3% (201912 A31H : 18.9%) * Lt
RIEFEERUAERBENFER - F
BEEBRBERITER RAZHE  BENE
B BREABESEEYWURSEFRIT

AEBRTERENTEREAEBLER
IRIEE S - N2020F12831H * A&EE 2
RITERAB7TIBEEEL(2019F 148 &
EIT) o

KEFRITERHFERN KN F1.25% 2
419% (20194 : 4.2% E5.0%) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing of Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”) 67.8 million (equivalent to approximately
US$8.7 million), after deducting the underwriting fees,
commissions and expenses payable by us, have been
and will be utilised in the same manner, proportion and
the expected timeframe as set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 29 June 2019 under the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”. The table
below sets out the planned applications of the net
proceeds and actual usage up to 31 December 2020:

EEE R RS
I ERERE

HBREMEHEER  AehkMX% LW
Fri8 k18 $%8678B & B T (HHE K487
BEEL)ELTBZIHART2019F6 A
9RTFIBEMBRERANIRRAEIRATE
REAR|—SHAEMBRAR - LA KB
HRNEXRIA TR AESREFEN
FEIARREE2020F12 A31ENEEH
BER:

Actual usage Unutilised
Approximate Actual upto amount as at
percentage of amount of Net 31 December 31 December
Use of proceeds total amount Proceeds 2020 2020 Expected timeline
B E20205 20205
HEEMY FREXREFE 12ANEME 12ANBXH
FRERERR Bk BEReE KIARR Rted FHEE
(HK$°000) (HK$°000) (HK$°000)
(F#T) (F#7) (F#7)
() Financing the revolving 84.1% 57,020 57,020 —
purchase payment for our
purchases of ICs imposed
under the ship-and-debit
arrangement
REETBZHT BHEMICHK
BORRRBARRHEES
(i) Enhancing our design and 3.7% 2,509 2,509 — =
R&D capabilities through
purchasing testing and R&D
equipment
RERB R ERBMARS
SR 2 ¢
(i) Recruiting and maintaining 9.9% 6,712 6,074 638 Remainder to be
high calibre talent utilised by 31 March
2021
RERBESHAL TER20215
SASIHBRHTL R
(iv)  Working capital 2.3% 1,559 1,559 — =
LEET
100% 67,800 67,162 638

BREEMBERAF 202049 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERET RS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

During the year, the Group entered into (i) the conditional
Sale and Purchase Agreement together with the
supplemental agreement with the independent vendor
in relation to the acquisition of 781 shares of Cosmic
Paramount Limited (“Cosmic”) (the “Acquisition”) and
(ii) conditional Subscription Agreement together with
the supplemental agreement to subscribe 148 shares
of Cosmic (the “Subscription”). After the completion of
the Acquisition and the Subscription on 31 December
2020, the Group held in aggregate 9.07% equity interest
in Cosmic. Cosmic, through its operating subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong, is principally engaged in
one-stop supply chain financial platform which provide
global supply chain solution services. Cosmics and its
ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent
of the Group and its connected persons.

The considerations of the Acquisition and the
Subscription were settled by the issuance of
promissory notes with an aggregate principal amounts
of approximately HK$49,955,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$6,446,000) which was, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, determined
by the parties through arm’s length negotiation and
approximated to the fair value of the equity interest
in Cosmic measured by the independent valuation
expert. As of 31 December 2020, the investment in
Cosmics are classified as financial assets at fair value
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group of
US$6,160,000 which accounted for approximately 9.09%
of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December
2020. Such investment in Cosmics represents a long
term strategic investment of the Group and the Board
expects that the competitiveness of the Group could
be further enhanced with the support from Cosmics in
terms of supply chain solutions. There was no unrealised
gain or loss or dividend during the Year. Details of the
Acquisition and the Subscription can be referred to note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As all the applicable percentage ratios of the
Transfer Agreement were below 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the agreement did not constitute
a notifiable transaction for the Company under Chapter
14 of Main Board Listing Rules, the requirements of
reporting and announcement under Chapter 14 of the
Main Board Listing Rules are not applicable.

Save for the investments mentioned above, there was
no other significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies by
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 103 employees
(81 December 2019: 107 employees). The Group’s
labour costs (including salaries, bonuses, pension and
welfare but excluding directors’ and chief executives’
remuneration) were US$3.6 million, accounting for 2.3%
of its revenue in the Year.

The remunerations of the employees are commensurate
with their performance, skills, knowledge, experience
and the market trend. Employee benefits provided
by the Group include medical insurance scheme
and mandatory provident fund. The Group reviews
the remuneration policies and packages on a regular
basis and will make necessary adjustments that
accommodate the pay levels in the industry. In addition
to basic salaries, the employees may be offered with
discretionary bonuses and cash awards based on
individual performances.

In addition, the Group has adopted a Share Option
Scheme as further described in “Report of the Directors”
in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEE

The Board consists of four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors (‘“INEDs").

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Keung (#k3&) (“Mr. Lam”), aged 48, joined
the Group in April 2010 and was appointed as a Director
in August 2016. He was re-designated as the executive
Director and appointed as the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in March 2018.

Mr. Lam is responsible for supervising the overall
management, making strategic planning of our Group,
implementing Board resolutions, as well as providing
guidance and directions of our Group. Mr. Lam also
conducts overall strategic review of the R&D department
of our Group, giving R&D directions in relation to the
latest trend of the IC and semiconductor industry.

Mr. Lam has over 24 years of experience in the IC and
semiconductor industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Lam worked at Rohm Electronics (H.K.) Company
Limited (currently known as Rohm Semiconductor Hong
Kong Company Limited) from September 1995 to August
2003 and his last position was assistant sales manager
where he was responsible for the sale of IC products.
Mr. Lam worked as a senior manager in marketing
department at Synergy International Technology
Limited from October 2003 to February 2010, where
he was responsible for the sales and marketing of
semiconductor solutions.

Mr. Lam joined IH Technology Limited (“IH
Technology”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as a general manager in April 2010 and
was subsequently promoted to serve as a director of IH
Technology in November 2010. Mr. Lam has also been
serving as a director of Flyring Electronics Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since
January 2011. Mr. Lam served as an independent non-
executive director of EFT Solutions Holdings Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8062), from 23 November
2016 to 26 March 2019, which is principally engaged
in sourcing of electronic fund transfer at point-of-sale
terminals and peripheral devices, and provision of
electronic fund transfer at point-of-sale system support
services and software solution services.
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Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor’'s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Tennessee, the United
States in December 1993.

Mr. Lam, through P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. (“P. Grand”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned by him,
holds approximately 59.1% of issued share capital of
the Company. In addition, pursuant to the confirmation
deed dated 21 March 2018 (the “Confirmation Deed”),
Mr. Lam, Mr. Qing and Ms. Feng Tao, the spouse of Mr.
Qing (“Mrs. Qing”), confirmed that they have been in
cooperation to jointly manage and control the operations
of the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong and
the PRC since 2011. In view of the fact that Mr. Lam,
Mr. Qing and Mrs. Qing have been and will continue to
be acting in concert in the control, management and
operation of the Group, Mr. Lam is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Kingtech which is
100% beneficially owned by Mrs. Qing.

Mr. Qing Haodong (Jli&®) (“Mr. Qing”), aged 57,
joined the Group in December 2016 and was appointed
as a Director in December 2017. He was re-designated
as the executive Director in March 2018.

Mr. Qing is responsible for the overall marketing activities
of our Group. He is also responsible for liaising with
electronics manufacturers and promoting the latest
electronic products to customers.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Mr. Qing has over 19 years of experience in the IC and
semiconductor industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Qing was an automation engineer at Sichuan Food
Fermentation Industry Research and Design Institute* (4
MNERMBEETEMRKEBT) from September 1985
to November 2000, where he was responsible for the
electrical design for automation control equipment. Mr.
Qing joined Chengdu Flyring Electronics Co., Ltd.* (X
#HWRIRETHERAAE) (“Chengdu Flyring”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as a sales
manager in November 2000. Mr. Qing has been serving
as the supervisor at Chengdu Flyring, Shenzhen IH
Technology Co., Ltd* (R HE &SI M AR D a))
and Shanghai IH Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.*
(EBEREMEFEMBMRAA) (“Shanghai IH"), all
of which are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, since February 2006, May 2005 and August
2009, respectively.

Mr. Qing obtained his professional certificate in industrial
electronics and enterprise (L{®E & %) from Harbin Jixie
Industry School* (I8 B # M T 2% 2%), the PRC, in
August 1985.

Mr. Qing is the spouse of Mrs. Qing, who beneficially
owns 100% of Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. (“Kingtech”). In
addition, pursuant to the Confirmatory Deed, Mr. Lam,
Mr. Qing and Mrs. Qing confirmed that they have been in
cooperation to jointly manage and control the operations
of the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong and
the PRC since 2011. In view of the fact that Mr. Lam,
Mr. Qing and Mrs. Qing have been and will continue to
be acting in concert in the control, management and
operation of our Group, Mr. Qing is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by his spouse Mrs. Qing
through Kingtech, and all the Shares held by Mr. Lam
through P. Grand.
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Mr. Mai Lu (Z &) (“Mr. Mai”), aged 46, joined the
Group in January 2017 and was appointed as the
executive Director of the Company in March 2018.

Mr. Mai oversees the design and R&D functions of
our Group and is responsible for the overall daily
management of the design and R&D team.

Mr. Mai has over 18 years of experience in providing
technical solutions of semiconductors. Mr. Mai worked as
an assistant engineer at the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army from July 1996 to July 2001, and his last rank at
the Chinese People’s Liberation Army was Professional
Technology Lieutenant (% % £ T ). Mr. Mai worked
as a sales engineer at Rohm Semiconductor (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd. from July 2001 to February 2003, where he was
responsible for sales and providing technical supports
to the customers, and worked as a manager at the R&D
department of Shanghai Huanwei Electronics Company
Limited* (EBRMEFBRAA) from March 2003 to
August 2010, where he was responsible for overseeing
the R&D department of the company.

Mr. Mai joined Shanghai IH as head of the R&D
department in September 2010.

Mr. Mai obtained his bachelor’s degree in electronics
and information system (£ F 2 HEH{Z 8 XHK241) from
National University of Defense Technology (FF Bl A R f#
B H R E T KE | currently known as AR B A R ## i
B &[5 R K2, the PRC, in July 1996.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Ms. Cheng Yu Pik (285 2) (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 40,
joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed as the
executive Director of the Company in March 2020.

Ms. Cheng has over 16 years of experience in the
semiconductor industry. Ms. Cheng is responsible for
overseeing the business and administrative functions of
the Group, including collaborating with other members of
the senior management and staff members to formulate
and implement policies and procedures; interfacing
cross-functionally at all levels within the Group as well
as with external resources (such as logistic companies,
governmental agencies); and providing routine reports to
the Board regarding operations, business performance
and human resources.

Ms. Cheng joined IH Technology in July 2009. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked at Synergy International
Technology Limited from August 2003 to June 2009
and her last position was senior customer service
coordinator where she was responsible for coordinating
with suppliers and handling enquiries. Ms. Cheng
worked as a general clerk at Kingdan Development
Limited from September 2000 to July 2003, where she
was responsible for dealing with suppliers, clients and
customs declarations.

Ms. Cheng obtained her matriculation certificate from
Caritas Bianchi College of Careers, Hong Kong, in
October 2000.

22 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020

B84t ([&4&t]) 405 © B20094F
TAMAKREER - I R2020F3 EELE A
KABMITESE -

BLINIEBTERARI6FLER - &
HTREEEASEXRBRITEBE(R
REGREEEEMKERERETET
BEHELRITERENEF RO HAXL
SEEBARERPT 2 M P E B A K B AR
BRBImR AT - BA#HBESZ) NEE
AR MEZTSCHMERSE XHRA
"RADEIR °

Bl 27 7 2009F 78 I A HIERHF o AN
AKREEF - % B2003F 88 £20094F6
AEBREREEBREBERAA @ &&
BUASARFRBHAZTE 8 & RH
FErRm B REIEEN - B2000F9A R E
2003F 7R BLZ TR R B EEBRAA
EXLTRAXE aEREMHER BFEU
NHRBESEE -

BZZ L2000 F 10 EBSEEREQA RS
HEERBEREERE -



INEDs

Mr. Dan Kun Lei Raymond (E8E &) (“Mr. Dan”), aged
50, was appointed as an INED of the Company in June
2019.

Mr. Dan has over 20 years of experience in the
information technology industry.

Mr. Dan has worked as a solution consultant at China
Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 941),
since March 2020, where he was mainly responsible
for providing technical and professional consultancy
services to its customers. Mr. Dan worked as senior
systems consultant at Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
from April 2017 to March 2020, where he was mainly
responsible for providing technical and professional
consultancy services to its customers. Prior to joining
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited, he was a senior bid
manager at CITIC Telecom International CPC Limited
from December 2015 to April 2017, where he was
responsible for managing bidding projects in relation to
information technology products. Prior to joining CITIC
Telecom International CPC Limited, he was an account
manager at Huawei Tech. Investment Co., Limited from
June 2013 to November 2015, where he was responsible
for providing technical services to the customers during
the process of sales. Mr. Dan worked as a business
consulting officer at Hewlett-Packard HK SAR Limited
from June 2010 to May 2013, where he was responsible
for providing pre-sale support, performing technology
assessment and maintaining customer relationship.
Prior to that, he also gained experience from different
information technology or telecommunication companies
including Shen Milsom & Wilke Limited, PCCW Limited a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0008) and Unisys China/Hong Kong Limited
from May 1999 to June 2010 in various positions.

Mr. Dan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in computer
systems engineering from La Trobe University, Australia,
in May 1997, and his master's degree in management
from Macquarie University, Australia, in October 2000.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Wong Kwun Ho (E & &) (“Mr. Wong™), aged 37,
is our independent non-executive Director. He joined
our Group on June 2019. Mr. Wong has more then 11
years of experience in financial management and public
offering transactions. Prior to joining our Group, from
September 2008, he was an associate in the Assurance
Department at PricewaterhouseCoopers and was
promoted to the position of senior associate in October
2010. He left PricewaterhouseCoopers in May 2011.
From August 2011 to September 2013, Mr. Wong worked
as assistant manager (corporate finance) at Fortune
Financial Capital Limited, a subsidiary of China Fortune
Financial Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 290). During
the period from September 2013 to April 2017, Mr.
Wong has been working in Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited (corporate finance) at Guotai Junan Capital
Limited, a subsidiary of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code:1788) and his last
position was assistant vice president in the corporate
finance department. From April 2017 to December 2017,
he worked as vice president (corporate finance) at
CCB Internation Capital Limited, a subsidiary of China
Construction Bank, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 939). Mr. Wong
worked as an associate director (corporate finance) at
Zhongtai International Management Limited from January
2018 to December 2018. Mr. Wong has been appointed
as an executive director at Zhongtai International
Management Limited since January 2019. Mr. Wong
was the independent non-executive director of Ascent
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:264),
from August 2018 to September 2019. Mr. Wong has
been appointed as the independent non-executive
director of Legion Consortium Limited, a company list
in the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2129) with effect from December 2020. Mr. Wong is a
licensed representative to carry on Type 1 (dealings in
securities) and a responsible officer of Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) regulated activities under the SFO.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in Business
Administration from the City University of Hong Kong
in November 2008. He became a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
February 2012.
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Mr. Lai Man Shun (2 E &) (“Mr. Lai”), aged 48, was
appointed as an INED of the Company in June 2019.

Mr. Lai has over 19 years of experience in information
technology and telecommunication industry. He has
been a general manager of EFT Payments (Asia) Limited
since July 2016, mainly responsible for the business
relationship management, development planning and
overall supervision of different departments of the
company. Immediately before that, Mr. Lai worked at EFT
Solution Limited as the head of business development
from March 2016 to June 2016. Before that, he was a
chief executive officer and founder of Paxex International
Limited from 2010 to 2016, mainly responsible for
the overall business of the company. He was also a
sales director and co-founder of RICC Limited, mainly
responsible for the management of the business
developments from 2001 to 2010.

Mr. Lai obtained his bachelor’'s degree in science from
La Trobe University, Australia, in May 1997.

Disclosure required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)

Each of the Directors confirms that save as disclosed
above: (i) he has not held directorships in the last three
years in other public companies, the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas,; (ii) he does not hold any other position in
our Company or any of its subsidiaries; (iii) there is no
other information that should be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (iv) to the best of
the knowledge, information and belief of our Directors
having made all reasonable enquiries, there are no
other matters with respect to the appointment of the
Directors that need to be brought to the attention of our
Shareholders.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors'
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares and Debenture” in this annual report, each of
the Directors certifies that he/she does not have any
interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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Senior management

Mr. Wang Kai (;E8l) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 41, joined
the Group in December 2016 and was appointed as the
head of sales of the Group in March 2018.

Mr. Wang has over 18 years of experience in the sales
and marketing of semiconductors, ICs and electronic
component products. Mr. Wang oversees the sales
business of our Group. He is also responsible for the
overall management of the sales teams of the Group.

Mr. Wang worked as a sales representative for Chengdu
Flyring in September 2001. He was subsequently
promoted to a sales manager in July 2005, where he
was responsible for regional sales operations in the
PRC, covering south-western and south-eastern areas
of the PRC. Mr. Wang has been serving as a director
of Shanghai IH since August 2009, and assumed the
position of sales manager of Shanghai IH subsequent to
his appointment as a director of Shanghai IH. Apart from
overseeing the daily management of Shanghai IH, Mr.
Wang is also responsible for the overall sales operations
of our Group. He has also been serving as a director of
Shenzhen IH since May 2015.

Mr. Wang obtained his high diploma certificate in
mathematics education from Zigong Shifan High Diploma
Professional School* (B B Al & = & E & 2 1), the PRC,
in June 2001.
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Ms. Au Ka Man Silkie (EX & #) (“Ms. Au”), aged 37,
joined the Group in October 2016 and was appointed as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company in March 2018.

Ms. Au has over 14 years of experience in business
administration and management. Ms. Au is responsible
for overseeing the financial operations of the Group, as
well as supervising accounting and finance departments.
She is also responsible for company secretarial matters
of our Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Au was the chief
executive officer of Pro Max CPA Limited from June
2014 to September 2016, where she was responsible
for the overall management, strategy planning and daily
operations of the company. She worked at CPA firm
from April 2008 to March 2014 and her last positions
were senior unit manager and practising director, where
she was responsible for the overall management of the
accounting departments and human resources. She
also worked as an assistant accountant at Accounting
firm from June 2006 to March 2008, where she was
responsible for preparing full set of accounts.

Ms. Au obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Lingnan University, Hong Kong, in
November 2006. She became a member of HKICPA in
January 2011.
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Ms. Feng Ying (5) (“Ms. Feng”), aged 52, joined
the Group in January 2017 and was appointed as the
head of PRC operations of the Group in March 2018. Ms.
Feng is the sister of Mrs. Qing and the sister-in-law of Mr.
Qing.

Ms. Feng has over 19 years of experience in the
management of the Group. Ms. Feng is responsible for
overseeing the business and administrative function
of the PRC entities of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Feng worked as an analyst in Sichuan
Yinshan Sugar Manufacturing Factory* ( P9 JII & $8
&) from September 1987 to 2000, responsible for
quality inspection. Ms. Feng joined Chengdu Flyring
as supervisor in November 2000 and was responsible
for supervising and inspecting the daily management,
operation, financial situation and the work of directors
and senior managers of Chengdu Flyring. Ms. Feng has
been serving as the legal representative, the director
and the general manager of Chengdu Flyring since
June 20083, responsible for administration and the daily
operations of Chengdu Flyring. Ms. Feng obtained her
graduate certificate majored in paper making from the
Neijiang Light Chemical Technician Training School* (A
I &b TE24), the PRC, in 1987.

*  For identification purpose only

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Changes in information of the Directors which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules are set out below:
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MAMAKERIRETES B85
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FoAR—EEMTKERIRNEARE
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EFANBE

BiE EHHAFEIBS5B)EETFTHRENE
EEREBEHNMOT

Name of Director Date of Change Details of Changes

EEfE 2¥EH 2FEHE

Cheng Yu Pik 27 March 2020 appointed as an executive Director
Bre 20209 3A27H EZERBITES
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors”
and the “Board”, respectively) is pleased to present
the report of the Directors together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The subsidiaries of the Group are principally
engaged in the sales of electronic components, and
sales and integration of storage systems.

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements. A list of the Company’s
subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation,
principal activities, place of operation and particulars of
their issued shares/registered share capital, is set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 88.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 195 to 196 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020,
together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE
Review of our Business and Performance

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the key
factors affecting its results and financial position are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

Information about a review of, and an indication of
likely future development in, the Group’s business is set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Particulars of Important Events

Since 31 December 2020, being the end of the financial
year under review, no important event has occurred
affecting the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The following section lists out the key risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive
list and there may be other risks and uncertainties
further to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or
an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the
Company and investors are advised to make their own
judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Financial risks

Details on the financial risks on foreign currency, credit
on trade receivables, liquidity and interest rate facing the
Group on its operation can be referred to note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Evolvement in information technology

Our Group operates in a highly competitive industry
which faces rapid changes in market trends, consumer
preferences and constantly evolving technological
advances in hardware models, software features and
functionalities. The ongoing changes in technology
require us to constantly incorporate new features or
technology into our sensitivity and adaptability to market
demand and/or services in order to cope with the
evolving environment and customer demands.

Our business operation may be affected by
future economic and political policies of the
PRC government

The development of PRC’s economy is based on many
factors, including but not limited to structure of economy,
government involvement, control of foreign exchange,
allocation of resources and capital investment. However,
any of such changes to the economic and political
strategies and policies of the PRC government may have
an adverse impact on the overall global economy and
affect all the industries in which the Group operates.
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Our business operation may be affected by
future economic and political uncertainties in
the world

Economic and political uncertainties in the world resulted
from major events such as Brexit, the U.S. presidential
election or terrorist attack events may have short-term
and long-term effects on the global economy and the
performance of the global capital markets, which in turn
may adversely impact the performance of the Group.

Performance history and forward looking
statements

The performance and the results of the operations of the
Group as set out in this annual report are historical in
nature and past performance is not a guarantee of future
performance. This annual report may contain forward
looking statements and opinions that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially
from expectations discussed in such forward-looking
statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor the
Directors, employees or agents of the Group assume
any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of
the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting
a sustainable and environmental friendly environment.
Our Group does not engage in the manufacturing of
products and does not have any production facilities.
The inventory are kept at our Group’s storage and
warehousing facilities situated inside the headquarters
office unit. Therefore, our Group is not subject to
significant health, safety or environmental risks. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, our Group had
not been subject to any fines or other penalties due to
non-compliance with health, safety or environmental
regulations.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Our operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in China
and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in China and Hong Kong in
all material respects.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group is constantly aware of the importance of
maintaining a good relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and
long-term business goals. We encourage employees to
strengthen their knowledge of the industries in which the
Group operate and attend courses or training sessions to
improve their relevant industry and technical knowledge.
The Group also maintains ongoing communications
with its employees, customers and suppliers through
various channels such as regular meetings, calls and
emails in order to allow employees to contribute to the
development of the Group, deliver better customer
services to our clients and obtain better services and
cooperation from our suppliers.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and
exemption available to Shareholders by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands amounted to US$11.5
million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of our property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on
16 July 2019 (the “Listing Date”) with net proceeds
received by the Company from the global offering in the
amount of approximately HK$67.8 million after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses. The
net proceeds received from the public offering will be
used in the manner consistent with that mentioned in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the Prospectus. Please refer to section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report for the utilisation of the net proceeds from the
Listing Date up to 31 December 2020.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on
the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares during
the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qing Haodong

Mr. Mai Lu

Ms. Cheng Yu Pik (appointed on 27 March 2020)

INEDs

Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho
Mr. Lai Man Shun

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
“‘Directors and Senior Management” to this annual
report. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Qing Haodong, Mr. Mai Lu, Ms. Cheng Yu Pik, Mr.
Dan Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Wong Kwun Ho and Mr. Lai
Man Shun shall retire at the AGM and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of our Group
has been set up by the remuneration committee of
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”’) on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The remuneration of the Directors is recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
eligible participants.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under note 31 “Related Party
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules) to which the Company or its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director, an entity connected with the
Director or controlling shareholder of the Company or its
subsidiaries (other than members of the Group) had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.

As of 31 December 2020, none of the Directors is
interested in any businesses apart from our business
which competes or is likely to compete with our
business, either directly or indirectly or would otherwise
require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. In
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms negotiated between the Group
and the respective related parties. The Directors confirm
that none of the related party transactions set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules that
is required to be disclosed.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2020 had the Company
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this
report pursuant to the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required: (i)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein (the
“‘Register”), or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
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as follows:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares®  shareholding
R4
e B S E 6B E® Bl
Mr. Lam Keung"® Interest in a controlled corporation/ 558,390,000 (L) 69.80%
Person acting in concert
R S @ REEEER—BITHAL
Interest in a controlled corporation/ 25,000,000 (S) 3.13%
Person acting in concert
RREEER —BITHAL
Mr. Qing Haodong™®) Interest in a controlled corporation/ 558,390,000 (L) 69.80%
Person acting in concert
P& R OO TEEER—BITBAL
Interest in a controlled corporation/ 25,000,000 (S) 3.13%

Person acting in concert

REEEERE/ —BTPHAL
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Notes:

(1)  Pursuant to a confirmatory deed, Mr. Lam Keung, Mr. Qing
Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao (spouse of Mr. Qing Haodong) have
acknowledged and confirmed, among other things, that they
are acting in concert with each other. Accordingly, each of Mr.
Lam Keung, Mr. Qing Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which any of them is interested
under the SFO.

(2) P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Mr. Lam Keung, and Mr.
Lam Keung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO. 25,000,000 Shares held by P.
Grand (BVI) Ltd. were pledged

(3) Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Ms. Feng Tao, and Ms.
Feng Tao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO.

(4) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so
far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company had or were
deemed to have any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be recorded in the Register or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 December 2020, the person
(other than a Director or the chief executives of the
Company) or corporations who had interests or short
position in the Share and underlying Shares which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name Capacity/Nature of interest

e &5 S e

i%ﬂ“iﬁ"ﬂ&ﬁi&#ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁm
EERXE

MEBERARAZSITHRABRTMN
202012 A318 - $ETF<<;§%&E@1%{MIJ>>
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares®  shareholding
i #84Y

B BB ® B9k

P. Grand (BVI) Ltd.® Beneflcial owner
EmEAA
Beneficial owner

BB A

Ms. Feng Tao(™ @) Interest in a controlled corporation/

Person acting in concert

5B L L Mee XErEREs/ —BITHAL

Interest in a controlled corporation/

Person acting in concert

REEEERD - BTPHAL

Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. Beneficial owner
EHEAA

Notes:

(1)  Pursuant to a confirmatory deed, Mr. Lam Keung, Mr. Qing
Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao (spouse of Mr. Qing Haodong) have
acknowledged and confirmed, among other things, that they
are acting in concert with each other. Accordingly, each of Mr.
Lam Keung, Mr. Qing Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which any of them is interested
under the SFO.

(2) P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Mr. Lam Keung, and Mr.
Lam Keung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO. 25,000,000 Shares held by P.
Grand (BVI) Ltd. were pledged.

(3) Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Ms. Feng Tao, and Ms.
Feng Tao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO.

(4) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the Shares.
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498,390,000 (L) 62.30%

25,000,000 (S) 3.13%

558,390,000 (L) 69.80%

25,000,000 (S) 3.13%

60,000,000 (L) 7.5%
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Save as those disclosed above, as at 31 December
2020, the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company are not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant
to a resolution in writing passed by the shareholders
on 21 June 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as
incentives or rewards for eligible participants who
contribute to the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, no share option was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option
Scheme. Summary of major terms of the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purposes of the scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to our Group. The Directors consider
the Share Option Scheme will enable the Group
to reward the employees, the Directors and other
selected participants for their contribution to our
Group and to attract and retain such individuals.
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(ii) The Participants

(iii)

The following persons of the Company, any member
of the Group or of an entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest may be invited by the
Directors to take up options to subscribe for Shares
at the Directors’ absolute discretion:

employees and directors;
suppliers and customers;

persons or entities that provides research,
development or other technological support;

holders of any securities;

advisers (professional or otherwise) or
consultants to any area of business or business
development; and

any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the Listing Date (i.e. 80,000,000 shares).
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(iv) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(v)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant other than a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholders of the Company who
accepts the offer for the grant of an option under
the Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Any further grant of options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval by the
INEDs. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an INED, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An offer of options may be accepted by a
participant within 28 days from the date of the offer
of the options. Unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer, a grantee is not
required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before the
exercise of an option granted to him.
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(vi) Subscription price for Shares and
consideration for the option

The subscription price for Shares will be a price
determined by the Directors, but shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by
the grantee on acceptance of the grant of option.

(vii) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 21 June 2019,
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

EQUITY-LINK AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that would or might result
in the Company issuing Shares, or that requiring the
Company to enter into an agreement that would or might
result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into
by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020 or subsisted at the end of the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands (place of incorporation of
the Company) or under the Articles of Association which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code. The Board considered that
throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions set out in the CG Code except for those
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report included
in this report. For details please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 48 to 67 of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than the employment contracts of
the executive Directors, concerning the management
and administration of the whole or substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and the indemnity
provision and Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
remained in force as of the date of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest
customers of the Group comprised 59% by value of our
total sales during the year, with the largest customer
accounted for 27%.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest
suppliers of the Group comprised 88% by value of our
total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier
accounted for 38%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) has an interest in any of our five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the
Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the matters outlined elsewhere in this
Annual Report, there have been no matters that have
occurred subsequent to 31 December 2020 which have
significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
Group’s operations, results or state of affairs in future
years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Moore
Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore Hong Kong”), who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM and offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Moore Hong Kong as the independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Keung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present the
corporate governance report for the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions according to the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the
Company’s corporate governance practices with effect
from the Listing Date.

The Company is committed to maintaining high
standards and has applied the Principles that are set out
in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on these Principles. The Board believes that
good corporate governance standards are essential
in contributing to the provision of a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance transparency and
accountability.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
and to a large extent the recommended best practices
in the CG Code throughout the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020, except for the deviation
from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as described
below. The Company will continue to review and monitor
its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.
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Our Company complies or intends to comply with the CG
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save
for Code provision A.2.1 which requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer be separated
and performed by different individuals. Mr. Lam is both
our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Our Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leadership and efficient discharge
of executive functions within our Group. Our Group
considers that the balance of power and authority of
the present arrangement will not be impaired as during
the period the Board comprised six other experienced
and high-calibre individuals including three other
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors who would be able to offer advice from
various perspectives. In addition, for major decisions
of our Group, the Board will make consultations with
appropriate Board committees and senior management.
Therefore, our Directors consider that the present
arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of our
Company and our Shareholders as a whole and the
deviation from Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstance.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the
“Written Guidelines”) on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code for
securities transactions by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Written Guidelines throughout the Year.
No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines
by the employees who are likely to be in possession
of inside information of the Company was noted by the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles and Responsibilities

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency
and profitability through the Board. The directors
recognise their collective and individual responsibility to
the shareholders and perform their duties diligently to
contribute to positive results for the Group and maximise
returns for shareholders. The Board’'s focus is on the
formulation of business strategy and policy, and control.
Matters reserved for the Board are those affecting the
Company’s overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders. These include, but not limited to the
following:

— determining policy matters, business plans and
strategies, risk management, internal control,

— annual and quarterly financial forecast;

— preliminary announcements of interim and final
results, and interim and annual reports;

— dividend policy;

— major corporate activities such as material
acquisitions and capital expenditures; and

— Directors’ appointment, re-election and

recommendations.

Directors could seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense
and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board comprises four executive Directors and three
INEDs. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qing Haodong

Mr. Mai Lu

Ms. Cheng Yu Pik (appointed on 27 March 2020)

INEDs

Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho
Mr. Lai Man Shun

The biographical information of the Directors and
relationship between the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 18 to 28 of this annual report. There is no
other relationship including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the Board
members.

Throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent
non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his or her independence during the
period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Chairman leads the Board to formulate corporate
mission, visions and policies of the Group and to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues.

All Directors, including INEDs, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All executive Directors actively involves in managing
the affairs of the Company with a good understanding
of the business, and play important roles in the daily
operations, whilst all INEDs participate in the Board
meetings and bring their independent views and
judgments on various issues.

INEDs provide the Group with a wide range of skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications
through their regular attendance and active participation
at various committee meetings of the Company. They
bring independent opinion and judgment on the
strategy and policies to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders are taken into account.

During the Year, each executive Director frequently met
and discussed with the management team in order to
maintain an effective feedback system and enable the
Group to react to changes or problems quickly and
efficiently. The Board shall review its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority regularly to
ensure that such delegations are appropriate in view
of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that
appropriate reporting system is in place.

Each Director is free to seek advice from and has
access to the Company’s senior management team
independently.
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Board Proceedings

The Company adopts a practice to convene 5 Board
meetings in a financial year with intervals of not more
than four (4) months. Notices of not less than 14 days is
required to be given to all Directors and each Director is
invited to include matters in the agenda. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assisted the Chairman in establishing the meeting
agenda. Detailed agenda and related meeting materials
were circulated to all Directors at least three days before
the date of the regular meetings.

Minutes were recorded in sufficient detail and draft
minutes have been circulated to all Board members
for comments. Finalised minutes were also sent to all
Directors for their records within reasonable time after
the meetings. All minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary and were open for inspection by Directors.

All Directors have been given the relevant guideline
materials regarding the duties and responsibilities of
being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors and duty of disclosure
of interest. During the Year, the Board held five (5)
meetings, amongst other matters, considered and
approved the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year 2019 and the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and one (1) AGM was held.
Details of the attendance of the Directors are set out
below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEXEARE
EEEREER
ARRREBEERN — B HRFERNARHS

REFEEZ BASRZMEHERIEA
MA)VER - AFREHREARMEESTELT
PRABER  REFHEBEZIETM
AR EE - ARAW R FEWE (A BT
EDWOHIENISZZRE FAZER
ERegREARENeRRMEL=H
MAEEEER -

SHRLRCERAFANCE  MEHEL
BRREREBEFENBEHUHERE
BR - -SRLEHNRKREIRTCESEE
REMNEERBEAZZXERESAEEH
BB FIAESRLEEHARMER
T WRAIHESER -

THREECDEREBREAESNR BB
E -EEEAMNMBBEEAMBO - LAKE
HmEBEEEMNEBIESIER c RAFE -
BEEERTAG)NEE  (ERBEE)EE
Mt AEAREB2010FENERBIXEZEAH
BRREANEBEHE2020F6 A30H IE /N
BEAMAEEXGEATBERRAREIT—
MABRBFRE EFHEETLHFE=Z
REFBFEHTNOT

No. of
Attendance/
No. of Meeting
Name of Director EEfa Eligible to Attend AGM
EHE
EEBEHEN B% =R
EE DN BEXE
Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and RAE ST A 5/5 1/1
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Directors’ training and development

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities
as a director of the Company and of the conduct and
business activities of the Company. The Company
is responsible for arranging suitable training for its
Directors. The Company has arranged for Directors to
attend a training session which place emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director,
as well as the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.
All the Directors had also participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by
reading materials regarding regulatory updates and
corporate governance matters.

The Articles of Association contains provisions for the
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors as
follows:

Appointment of Directors

Article 83(2) provides that subject to the Articles of
Association and the Law, the Company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board.

Article 83(3) provides that the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board.

Re-election of Directors

Article 83(3) also provides that any Director so appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointment by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the article 84(1), at each annual general
meeting one-third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third (1/3)) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.

54 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020

Bl %R

&
EREFRARTHRETARAESTHG
MBETERARBNTREEHESY - AR
FAAERESRLTHEEMNEI - AR7FE
LHEEF2MBIRE  EHBI LD
NREEENAC  BENBE  UKREAH
(EMRBD R HEMEHEE R E N &K
k- MTBEESABHEENREEEHN
REFREREENME  2HBENRE
EXBRELY -

MEBERAMNHEERRIE BEENE
REEGRXMT:

EXEEF

MAFEBIGERE  RIFABKEZAA
FER ARRIAABETRRBRERCT
MALTEETES NEREFEgNRE=
RFIEMRBEEFTAHK -

AMRIES3Q)IGME  EFSHETKRNEE
RETERNALSREFTNEMESTSHR
FERIIERBEEESTEHNHIENXE -

EZEF

HHEBIESIBIKIME T BEESESZEMN
HERGBRETHRNTIMNESNTIHERE
ZEEARFNEERERS AL - XA
Nze FERET EEESRTHEAR
FEEeHEKENTRNESNITHE
EARRTERERFRAS AL @ B
BEREREMT -

REBAUNESINIE REERRBFX
gL EBER=Z2Z2(UR)EFGEMAHK

WIF=Q)WMEE - ARKZFLEAIDR=
DZ—(ARMAB)ERESR  EEM
EEARVE=FRERRBEFRGEE—

N
IN °



Article 84(2) provides that a retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires and
any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the
other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who
have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same
day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot.

Removal of Directors

Under article 83(5), the members may, at any general
meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of
office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these
articles or in any agreement between the Company and
such Director (but without prejudice to any claim from
damage under any such agreement).

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than the Directors) whose particulars are
contained in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2020 by band is set out below:
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties:

1.

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
appropriate recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The chairman and chief executive officer of our
Company is Mr. Lam Keung. The reasons for the two
roles are being performed by the same individual are
set out in the paragraph headed “Corporate Governance
Practices” in this report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three (3) Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. All the
committees are empowered by the Board under the
respective terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, which are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
are available for inspection by the Shareholders upon
request made to the Company Secretary. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs, namely
Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Lai Man Shun and Mr.
Wong Kwun Ho. Mr. Wong Kwun Ho is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has extensive commercial experience and the
Audit Committee has a suitable expertise in various
businesses, financial and legal sectors and that the
composition and establishment of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly (i)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and to oversee the audit process of the Group, (ii) to
oversee internal control procedures and corporate
governance of our Group, and (iii) to review risk
management and internal control systems of our Group.
It has the responsibilities and powers set forth in the
terms of reference.

The Audit Committee members shall meet at least twice
a year to consider the interim and final results prepared
by the Board.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two (2)
meetings to, among others, review and supervise
the financial reporting process and review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
and its audit-related matters. It had, in conjunction
with the management of the Company, reviewed the
Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and the unaudited
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and recommended the same to the
Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit
Committee was of the opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures had been made. The Audit Committee also
carried out and discharged its other duties as set out in
the CG Code.

The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee
meetings is as follows:

RAFE  BZEZESRITMR)ADH
N(EFBEE)BRAREBRYKERBRER
EHNAEB ZRAREEMNANIEITHE
UREERBEEE HEEAQFERE
EBEEAANEEEREZ2019F12A310ILEE
MR BZEEMBERER RE E2020%6 7
S0RLEANEANAEEZEESTIERE
TRtmEESELHEBERR  UWEES
SEBMIE BREESRE  2FE
BEMREMAERETEERE  AE
ERFZEDHEE - BRZEGNETRET
REEERTAMBENEMEEES -

EBUFNTEESHFERZEST SR
BORET

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

Members o= Eligible to Attend
EHE SEREHED

RN

Mr. Wong Kwun Ho BERRLEE 2/2
Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond HMEELE 2/2
Mr. Lai Man Shun RERELE 2/2

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings on 27 March 2020
and 28 August 2020 to review and consider, among
other matters, the Group’s the audited consolidated
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Dan
Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Wong Kwun Ho and Mr. Lai Man
Shun (chairman).
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly (i) to develop a transparent policy in
relation to remuneration; (ii) to review the remuneration
policy and the structure relating to all Directors and
senior management of the Group; (iii) to assess
performance of all Directors and review performance
based remunerations payable to Directors and
senior management of the Group; and (iv) to make
recommendations on other remuneration-related
arrangement, such as, housing allowance and bonuses
payable to Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two
(2) meeting for reviewing and recommending the Board
of the remuneration and other benefits payable by the
Company to the Directors and senior management.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee meeting is as follows:
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The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings on 27
March 2020 and 28 August 2020 respectively and
considered certain remuneration-related matters of the
Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises of one
executive Director, Mr. Lam Keung (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai
Man Shun and Mr. Wong Kwun Ho.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
(i) to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis; (ii) to make recommendations
to our Board relating to the appointment, re-appointment;
(iii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board; and (iv) to assess the
independence of our INEDs.

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the Nomination
Committee shall monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and review the progress of its
measurable objectives from time to time.

A summary of the Board Diversity Policy, together with
the implementation are disclosed as below.

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to strengthen the performance of the
Board, promote effective decision-making and better
corporate governance and monitoring. To achieve a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company
encourages increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing an appropriate composition of the Board,
the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, culture and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Directors appointment will be based on applicable merits
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
one (1) meeting for, among other matters, reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of INEDs and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors.
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The attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee meeting during the Year is as follows:
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REZESEZISKERNEKEENEFEX
LN

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting

Members 8 Eligible to Attend
EHE SEBEHBN

EEDN

Mr. Lam Keung o8 o A 11
Mr. Lai Man Shun REELEE 11
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho BERREE 1/1

The Nomination Committee met on 31 March 2021 and
recommended the re-appointment of all the retiring
Directors at the forthcoming AGM after assessing their
contribution and performance based on the Nomination
Policy.

Nomination Policy

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee evaluates skills, knowledge and experience
required by the Board, and identifies if there are any
special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination
Committee identifies appropriate candidates and
convenes Nomination Committee meeting to discuss
and vote in respect of the nominated Directors, and
recommends candidates for Directors to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers candidates with
individual skills, experience and professional knowledge
that can best assist and facilitate the effectiveness of the
Board. The Nomination Committee takes the policy on
Board diversity of the Company into consideration when
it considers the balance of composition of the Board as a
whole.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities and
opinion on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 87 of this
annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the
independent auditor of the Company, Moore Hong Kong,
in respect of audit services and other services for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EFHUMBERNEE

EERRATFZEEREAEEHEH E2020
F12A3MHEFENGEAEMERE -

ARABUZEMEREHTKEHRROE
BEELRERBARNAFRFESIESTA
BB B R E A -

15 31 2 S5 B BN &

HZE2020F12A31B It FERBZRBE X
HAa RGBT A AR E) B A% EE K
EFEENME o WEFI BT

Fee paid/

Service iR 5 payable
gt

FE + & H

Us$’000

FEXT

Annual audit services FEEZRG 102
Other services E b fr 7% 22
Total 4Bt 124
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the interest
of the Company and the Shareholders and through the
Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such
systems on an annual basis.

Procedures have been set up for, inter alia, identifying,
analysing, categorizing, mitigating and monitoring
significant risks, and safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring reliability of financial
information, ensuring compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations and protecting the interests of the
Shareholders. Such systems are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and aims to provide a reasonable,
as opposed to an absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company does not have an internal audit
department. The Board will set up an internal audit
function in light of the size and nature of the Group’s
business. The need for an internal audit function will be
reviewed from time to time. Nevertheless, for the Year,
the Board has conducted a review of, and is satisfied
with, the effectiveness of the internal control systems
of the Group. The Board considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control are adequate
and effective. The Board expects that a review of the
risk management and internal control systems will be
performed annually.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary is a full time employee and has
the day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
She is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, the
Company Secretary confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with the requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced immediately when it is
the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information are as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to
the disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules
as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

o the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy
on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use
of confidential or inside information; and

e the Group has established and implemented
procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
Directors, Company Secretary and investor relations
officers are authorized to communicate with parties
outside the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of
cash or by other means that the Company consider
appropriate. Any proposed distribution of dividends
shall be determined by the Board and will be subject to
Shareholders’ approval. In deciding whether to propose
any dividend payout and/or determining the amount of
any dividend to be paid, the Board will take into account,
amongst other matters:

(a) the Group’'s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) interests of shareholders of the Company;
(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the other members of the
Group;
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(m)

the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and financial covenants to which the
Group is subject;

possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

liquidity position of the Group and any future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend;

taxation considerations;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;

general business conditions and strategies;

general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;

and

other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends shall be
subject to all applicable laws and regulations including
but not limited to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the
‘“Memorandum and Articles”).

The Company will review its dividend policy from time
to time and reserves the right in its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend
policy at any time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or Company Secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for the
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Unit A, 13/F, Block 1, Leader Industrial Centre,
188-202 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations Department)
Fax: + 852 2391 2422

Email: ir@conteltechnology.com
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition,
notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Company’s
business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meetings and other general meetings. At the annual
general meeting, Chairman and chairman of the Board
committees (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet the Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at
www.conteltechnology.com as a communication platform
with the Shareholders and investors, where the financial
information and other relevant information of the Company
are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles. An up to date
version of the Memorandum and Articles is available on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

8 &

RIE - HERES

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Company is pleased to present the 2020
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
‘Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s
management of significant issues affecting the
operations, including environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) issues.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the policies and performance
regarding the environmental and social aspects from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Reporting Basis

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “comply
or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and on the basis
of the four reporting principles — materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency.

The information contained herein is sourced from
official documents and statistics of the Group, as well
as the combined control, management and operations
information provided by the subsidiaries in accordance
with the Group’s relevant policies. The Report is
prepared and published in both Chinese and English. In
the event of contradiction or inconsistency, the English
version shall prevail.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
ESG approach and performance. If you have any
advice or suggestions, please contact us via email at
ir@conteltechnology.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE

The Board believes that a sound ESG is vital for
continued sustainability and development of the Group’s
operation. The Board has taken overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting and has a strong
commitment to environmental protection with the mission
to promote the environmental culture among our staff to
maintain a sustainable development for the Group.

The sites of operations refer to the warehouse and office
in Hong Kong and the office in Shenzhen, Shanghai
and Chengdu. They are operated by the subsidiaries
of the Group, namely Flyring Electronics Limited, IH
Technology Limited, Shenzhen IH Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (&Y T & 5 1= 6l & s & R 2 &), Shanghai IH
Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.* (E/BEEME
TR AR AR and Chengdu Flyring Electronics Co.,
Ltd* (KERERETFERAA).

Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data
covers the Group’s operation in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Environmental sustainability is a key focus of
the Group’s corporate social responsibility. We
implement policies and practices that help conserve
resources, improve energy efficiency and raise
environmental awareness among our staff. We are
committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving
the Earth’s natural resources. We strive to minimize
our environmental impacts attributable to its
operations while ensuring high standards in our
operational efficiency and service quality.

A1. Emissions

Since the business activities covered by this Report
mainly involve office operations, there was no
emission that would have significant environmental
impacts other than greenhouse gases produced
indirectly in the course of electricity consumption.

* The English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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The Group is committed to the following:

° Minimise emissions of air pollutants and
greenhouse gases;

° Adopt internationally recognised standards or
equivalent local standards in assessing and
disclosing the emissions of greenhouse gases
in its operations;

° Prevent and minimize hazardous and
non-hazardous waste; and

° Properly discharge hazardous and
non-hazardous waste produced in its
operations.

As the Group’s business activities mainly involve
office operations with no material manufacturing
of products, there are no significant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

To control the greenhouse gas emissions, the
Group has adopted policies on efficient use of
energy as described in the section headed “Use
of Resources” below and will continue to assess,
record and disclose its greenhouse gas emissions
and other environmental data on a yearly basis. The
performance indicators are as follows:
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im = 3 8 HE B E fir 20204 20194
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Per employee (scope 2) tonnes of CO,e/employee 1.0 0.9
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Non-hazardous solid wastes, mainly the domestic
and commercial wastes, generated in our offices
and warehouses during our operations in the
Reporting Period were amounted to about 4.38
tonnes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group took
necessary steps to monitor and manage the
environmental effect of the operations. The Group
aims to reduce the energy consumption and
carbon emissions and seeks less harmful ways
to the environment in the operations. Our internal
policies are to comply all the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to our operations in different
jurisdictions.

The greenhouse gas emissions is estimated with reference to,
2018 Sustainability Report issued by China Light and Power
Co. Ltd. and 2017 Regional Power Grid Average CO. Emission
Factors in China guideline published by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

Scope 1. The direct emission from the business operations
owned or controlled by the Group, including the final
consumption from mobile vehicles

Scope 2: The “indirect energy” emissions from the internal
purchased electricity consumption by the Group
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Wastes

The wastes generated from sites of operations are
generally domestic wastes, office paper, paper
board and toner. We have engaged with recycling
companies to recycle the wastes. The details of the
wastes generated are as follows:

FE ¥

LEWHELNEYBEBTERERE
W MAERMA - RIREIRE o B
ZHERIW AR ARG Y REY - FTE &8
BEYFHBWT

Wastes” Unit 2020 2019
& 7 5 {3 20204 20194
Office Paper tonnes 1.3 1.4
N E K 158

To reduce paper consumption, we encourage our
employees to:

e Reuse envelopes and folders for sending
internal documents and letters;

e Use double side printing;
e  Adopt electronic filing; and

e Arrange conference call or video conference
instead of face-to-face meetings.

The Group will continuously monitor the greenhouse
gas emissions and waste production to see if any
detailed measures can be formulated in the future
for more effective management of emissions.
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A2. Use of Resources A2. EiR{ER

The Group is well aware that reasonable use of AEEFACEEAERYURSE

resources is essential to sustainable development. EREWUEEZE - XEERNIRAUATH

The Group is committed to the following: 5 ¢

e Adopt the principles of reduce, reuse and e FITHL -BINAMEKHR
recycle to increase the consumption efficiency A R HEBEERNER -
of energy, paper, water, high-quality plastic Mok -k BE B AEEE
stretch film (packaging materials) and other EMRLD) FEAME R EEFERUE
resources in its business operations; and &

e Nurture the culture of environmental protection s EARKBAEERAXE  E®
within the Group to increase the environmental BEINERRES

awareness of employees.

The Group seeks to encourage its employees to AEEBNEEEIUFERNENA
adopt efficiency measures in the use of lighting, NERABHA B K BREREE
computer, water, paper and packaging materials. MR o

Energy Management REREE

The major energy source is electricity. The Group RENETERREEESN - AKEBEE
has implemented various measures to mitigate TEZEERAREEMBERRA - =
the consumption regarding the use of lighting, air FAREBRKABER

conditioner and computer.

FEEENBERAR 2020FEH% 13
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RIE - HERELGRE

Lighting

Switch on the lighting only when the meeting room
is occupied. Switch off the lighting upon leaving the
meeting room; and

e  Switch off unnecessary lighting in public areas
(such as reception area, pantry, lavatory and
corridors) during less busy hours (such as
lunch-time and non-business hours).

Air conditioner:

° Maintain room temperature at 25 degrees
Celsius when using air conditioners during
summer;

e  Switch off unnecessary air-conditioners during
less busy hours (such as lunch-time and
non-business hours); and

e  Switch on the air-conditioner only when the
meeting room is occupied. Switch off the
air-conditioner upon leaving the meeting room.

Computer:

e Adjust the computer setting to activate the
standby or hibernation mode of computers
so that the display monitor will switch off
automatically or enter energy saving mode
when left idle for a prescribed period of time;

e  Adjust the brightness of the display monitor;
and

e  Switch off computers (including the display
monitor) after use.
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The details of energy consumption are as follows:

RIE - HERELGRE

BERBERFBMT

Use of resources Unit 2020 (approximately) 2019 (approximately)
ERER E8 fi 20204 (#1 &9) 2019 (HE49)
Electricity kWh 142,122 142,279
E TR

Electricity intensity kWh/ft2 6.53 6.54
ENEE SEHRFRE

The main source for energy consumption was still
the purchased electricity during the Reporting
Period. The electricity consumption was higher
during summer time (June to September). It was
possibly caused by the increase in the uses of air
conditioners.

Water Resource

Water consumption refers to the water usage in
washroom and pantry. The water supply is provided
by the third party and managed by the property
management company. Therefore, there is no issue
in sourcing water. The Group has implemented
initiatives to control water consumption as follows:

e  Turn off the water tap promptly after use.

RS HE - 8 IRH AN T ZHORID

RARINBES - EF (A

ENRAH

/N
ERR RATERZHERE
RITFTER o

KEIR

FARIEATRRIOKBMAA -
AMEZFRM  WEPEEEAR
BIE o EUL - AR ISR A
B o AREEHTIA TR RS
i

P& BEBN A= K BETA ©

Use of resources Unit 2020 (approximately) 2019 (approximately)
BERER E5 fi 2020 (#} 49) 20194 (# &9)
Water Cubic meter 316.0 613.0
K K

Water intensity Cubic meter/ft2 0.02 0.03
IKEE 8 F5 R FK

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, its daily
business operations posed no significant adverse
impact on the environment directly. However, the
indirect greenhouse gas emissions would aggravate
the phenomenon of global warming. The Group
strives to reduce the indirect impact caused
by greenhouse gas emissions through various
measures mentioned in the sections “Emissions”
and “Use of resources”.

A3. IRIERKAREIR

HERAEEXRFNEEL  EAEER
SEHRBEVBERNERINF
2o R BRERBBEBEERMNE
ERELARAR -AEERNBEBEH
BIRTERER|ZEREAN RS
i R ER R BE PR IR & B A R R

=AY
=

o
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B1.

The Group endeavors to comply with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations and has
adopted effective measures to reduce wastage.
Our employees are fully aware that it is important
for the operation of the Group to minimize the
impact on the environment and natural resources.
Our management also closely monitors the utilities
consumption in different offices and encourages
employees to work together to reduce utilities
consumption.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

The Group abided by all laws and regulations
adopted in all sites of operations and has
formulated the Employment and Labour Practices
Policy Statement. The aim of the Employment
and Labour Practices Policy Statement is to
provide employees with a workplace that is free
of discrimination and harassment and emphasises
diversity, health and safety.

Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

Employees are our valuable assets. We have
developed a written staff manual to govern the
discipline, working hours, leaves and other benefits
of our employees, in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

To attract, motivate and retain experience staffs,
we reviewed their pay packages annually with
prevailing market conditions. Our full-time
employees are entitled to maternity, paternity,
compassionate leaves, medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory
provident fund.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to eligible employees. Social
and recreational activities are arranged for the
employees in achieving work-life balance. We
apply equal opportunity and non-discrimination in
recruitment, promotion and all other aspects of our
employment practices.
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There were no non-compliance cases noted in
relation to health and safety laws and regulations
during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2020, the total number and
distribution of employees within the Group are as
follows:

RIE - HERELGRE

RBEEETER S ARERT S
BEAEREROER -

M2020F12A31H - AEEETIES
R RDMHIERET

2020 2019

Number of employee EE A 20204 20194F
By Gender ZMHRE o

Male S 52 62

Female 7% 51 54
By Age Group EFERAERE D

Below 30 30 AT 14 17

30 to 50 30E505% 79 92

Over 50 505% A £ 10 7
By Region %= &l 5o

PRC ey 77 89

Hong Kong BE 26 27
Health and Safety B2. BFFEHZ 2

We are committed to providing and maintaining
a safe, healthy, and hygienic workplace for all
employees. The Group did not encounter any lost
days caused by injury. Air purifiers were placed
in work place to improve air circulation. There
were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.

HFBENREEBEEREARER L
2 RBEKFENIIESH A&H
WEAE R THIIENTHEEKLA -
THESHEREEZERFLSNUARZ
ZRER - RBEHELELNT S @
FRZE2HBERIEROMEE -
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B3. Development and Training

We acknowledge the importance of training for
the development of our employees as well as our
Group. We encourage and support our employees
in personal and professional training, through
sponsoring training programmes, seminars,
workshops and conferences, peer learning and
on-the-job coaching, as well as reimbursement
for external training courses to enhance their
competencies in performing their jobs effectively
and efficiently. Total training hours offered in 2020
was 936 hours, average 9.1 hours per trained
employees. We believe this is a mutually beneficial
practice for achieving both personal and corporate
goals as a whole.

As at 31 December 2020, the total training hours
received by employees within the Group are as
follows:

Number of Training Hours
Completed by Employees {& & 5 B Y 3% 5il BF 2

B3. ¥ & & il

BMAAEIIEEENEAER A
EREEEZ - BAMEBHLIEESE
EITREAREEEI - BEEHEI
e e TEHEHRE - RE
ERMERE - AR EBREREHE
SNEREEFIGRAE - MR FHEBRES -
EREM EEBR KSR MITTNHE -
2020F IRt MY 15 3 48 B B R 936 /)
B FHEEXZIEBAINE - B
4 r HWEREBIRBEAMSEEE
BIEREEENBHOE -

M2020F 128310 - KAEBEE N EES
BEXHEIBRENT

Unit Amount
BS {if B 2

Average hours of training per &% & 8 B F 15 15 3| i £

employee and percentage KX IEE B D (%)
(%) of employees who

received training

By Gender EZMHRE o
Male B
Female pegica

By Employee Category EZEBEANE H

Senior management BRERE
Middle management RRERE
Junior employees % EE
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B6.
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Labour Standards

The Group considers child and forced labour
unacceptable and ought to be prevented. The
Group has instituted a comprehensive screening
and recruiting process to prohibit the use of child
labour. Employee work schedules are set up fairly to
keep within standard working hours. All employees
are provided with appropriate leave entitlements
including annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave and compassionate
leave etc. There were no non-compliance cases
noted in relation to labour standards laws and
regulations during the Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

Relationship is the fundamentals of business. Sound
supply chain management ensures the Group to
sustain its business operations and development.
We have maintained strong relationships with our
suppliers to meet our customer’'s needs in an
effective and efficient manner. When selecting
suppliers, the Group takes factors into account
such as quality of products and functionality, price,
reliability and anticipated market acceptance.
The Group expects suppliers to observe the
environmental, social, health and safety and
governance considerations in their operations.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes good customer service
is the key to the success and sustainability of a
corporation. Suppliers provide warranty on the
products they supply to the Group for distribution of
electronic components. Suppliers are responsible
for providing or procuring the provision of
in-warranty service to the end customers.

B4.

B5.

B6.
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B7.

B8.

The Group also adopts the following quality control
policies on the products to be sold:

— a series of inspections upon the receipt of
the products in our warehouse regarding,
among others, their appearance, packaging,
specification and brand logo, etc. on a
sampling basis; and

— If any defects are identified, the relevant
product will be returned to the supplier for
replacement.

During the Reporting Period, we have not received
any cases of infringement of intellectual property
rights. We are also not aware of any suspected
cases of infringement of intellectual property rights
of the products that we were distributed in 2020.

The Group is also committed to abide by the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Personal data
shall be highly protected. Employees are committed
not to disclose confidential information, including
information related to suppliers and customers
whether orally or in writing or in any other media
which are not publicly known.

Anti-Corruption

Both the Group and its business partners are
committed to upholding the highest ethics
standards. Parties involved in business interaction
shall prohibit each and every form of corruption,
extortion, bribery, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement. The Group advocates the standards
of fair transaction, advertising and competition and
puts in place a confidentiality mechanism to protect
the identity of suppliers and whistleblowers. No
suspected enquiries or cases involving fraud were
reported during 2020.

Community Investment

We encourage our employees to participate in
social and community events and to volunteer for
good causes. We will continue to shoulder the
social responsibility by caring the community,
employees and the environment in order to build a
cohesive society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

K| MOORE

To the Shareholders of
Contel Technology Company Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Contel Technology Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 88 to 194, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Key audit matter

HEEREIR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BI YR &

FAREEEIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFETEZRNINAEEREEZEIR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

E 5 & i 5 B 8 AF 18

Refer to the notes 3(g), 3(h), 4, 19 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements

LBEEHBEHRRMES3(Q) * 3(h) * 4 * 19%33

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade
receivables with gross carrying amounts of
approximately US$35,600,000. The Group had
recognised expected credit loss (“ECL") on
trade receivables of approximately US$268,000
to the consolidated profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

M2020F12A31H: BEEBEFAALAFKEED
35,600,000 T HY B 5 FE Y 5K 18 - & £ 20204
12A31BIEFE - BEEEREHERFKEBRLE
cfEnEREHNCEERERE(RHAGEEEEDY
268,000% Tt °

The ECL assessment on trade receivables is
considered to be a matter of most significance
as it requires the application of significant
judgement and use of subjective assumptions
by the Group’s management. The management
of the Group believed that the methodologies
and inputs used in estimating ECL are in
accordance with the applicable accounting
standard. These models and assumptions
relate to the future macroeconomic conditions
and debtors’ creditworthiness. The Group
has adopted judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in order to measure ECL
according to the requirements of accounting
standards such as definition of credit impaired
financial asset, parameters for measuring ECL
and forward-looking information.

EHORKRFBEZRBEEERMAGEAREAXN
FHR - RAEFTZ S5EEEREERAERHAL
MERTFERE  BESEEEERR A&
BHEEEEMAAEREBENSERASTE
Al o ZFEAREKRERREEBLBEMRNE
BAGERBE  SEEBERMNALH RREME
ARl RBEEELEERESREENTSE
AERHEEEEN2HLAIEEENEFES
HHWH T ERHAEEBE -

Our procedures in relation to address the matter
included:
BPEEZEERRDNIEFEE:

Evaluating the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating
the ECL, by reference to externally available
economic data;
DENHAERLBEE  Fh EEEFTERE
HEEBRMAZ % BERRE:

Obtaining an ageing analysis of the trade
receivables from the management of the
Group and testing the accuracy of ageing of
trade receivables at the reporting date to the
underlying invoices on a sample basis;

B ESEEREENSESRUKNIEZERR D
i WO H B 5 RUGIRER R E B Z iR
e B2 AR R 3 SR Ay

Challenging the management’s assessment
of the recoverability of long outstanding and
overdue trade receivables;
BEREEEHRAREERBHESEWK
T8 7 A] 4e (B 14 ST

Selecting samples considering the
management’s assessment of the latest
financial conditions of the debtors, based on
historical experience and observable external
data; and
RIFBELRLATBRINBEE - BIERARGT
HEBBHEBAZOMBARLNTME: K

Assessing the adequacy of the ECL recorded
by reviewing subsequent settlements after
the year end and any correspondence with
customers about expected settlement dates.
AMEEREHNFRENREAEARBRER
FHAEHEERAHNEAERIESENTELRE
EEEREAARAR -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Company’s 2020 annual report other
than consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the
audit committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I8 3L 2 BT 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the
Company regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee of the Company
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee of the Company, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ngai Yan
Practising Certificate Number: P07422

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERmAEMEEWRRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12H31H I F &

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
i &F F % T S
Revenue A 6 153,919 101,461
Cost of sales 8 & B AN (144,544) (89,987)
Gross profit EH 9,375 11,474
Other income H th e A 6 891 161
Selling and distribution expenses & K 7 $HF X (2,538) (1,726)
General and administrative — M RATHER R X
expenses (4,022) (2,502)
Provision for allowance for expected E 3 W R IBEHN B E
credit loss on trade receivables BREETIR 19 (268) (111)
Listing expenses X — (2,709)
Finance costs Bl & B A 7 (889) (1,027)
Profit before income tax 5 &t P 1% %i 50 ) A 8 2,549 3,560
Income tax expense FIEHiAX 10 (528) (1,047)
Profit for the year attributable to A2 S B A B
owners of the Company ERFE 2,021 2,513
Other comprehensive income/ HtZEUzE (E518)
(loss)
Item that may be reclassified REEBERHEAIEZ 712
subsequently to profit or loss: BammEE -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBIINEBREEN
translating foreign operations fE X =% 142 (21)
Other comprehensive income/ FERXATHEBANEN
(loss) for the year attributable  H i 2 HEUW s~
to owners of the Company (B548) 142 (21)
Total comprehensive income/ FERNXEATHBAEN
(loss) for the year attributable 2Edzn (B1E)
to owners of the Company B 2,163 2,492
HK cents HK cents
A B
Earnings per share attributable A2 S HH A B
to owners of the Company SRAEH
Basic and diluted EARK#ESE 11 1.96 2.81
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEMBRRAR

As at 31 December 2020 R20204% 12431 H

2020 2019
20204 20194F
Notes Us$’ooo US$'000
=3 F £ T FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREIHE
Non-current assets RHEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEKRFZE 13 1,054 809
Intangible assets mVEE 14 33 89
Goodwill BES 15 279 261
Life insurance policy deposits ASRERZS 16 1,427 1,403
Financial assets at fair value BAREBETAEM
through other comprehensive ZHEHBEN M
income BE 17 6,160 —
Deferred tax assets EEMIEEE 27 56 —
9,009 2,562
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 18 11,762 12,909
Trade and bills receivables B 5 MW FRIE & R
EX 19 35,601 25,696
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ TEfIZRIE « & &k Efth
receivables J& W 5K I8 20 4,022 9,794
Amounts due from related parties & Ui B8 Bt 75 3k 18 31(b) 13 12
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 21 905 1,229
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBREEEY 21 6,042 6,263
Tax recoverable Al Uz [B1 ¢ 18 435 —
58,780 55,903
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables B SR RIE R ER
Fig 22 21,063 23,211
Accruals, contract liabilities and JEETER 608 ER
other payables H fth & 1 5k 18 23 1,082 2,050
Promissory notes O EE 24 6,160 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 362 382
Bank borrowings RITERK 26 7,103 1,401
Tax payable J& 41 7t 5K — 1,353
35,770 28,397
Net current assets mEBEEFHE 23,010 27,506
Total assets less current BEHERAHAEE
liabilities 32,019 30,068
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEMBIRRER

As at 31 December 2020 R20204F 12531 H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes US$°’000 US$°000
oA FEIT FET

Non-current liabilities ERBHEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 25 67 279
Net assets EEFE 31,952 29,789

EQUITY i

Share capital [N 28 1,032 1,032
Reserves B 30,920 28,757
Total equity R 31,952 29,789

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to $88F194B M 4r & M MK N 20215E3AH
194 were approved and authorised for issue by the J31EREZEZeMHERBETIEILHUATA
Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and are signed on TRXEZFEHE:

its behalf by:

Mr. Lam Keung Mr. Qing Haodong
®EEE UED i R S A&
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEmBBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z20204 12531 H 1F F /&

Equity wholly-attributable to owners of the Company

AATRAARGER2DRE
Statutory
Share Share Other Merger ~ surplus Translation  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
EERE
k¥ RiGitE RbgRE ASHEE LR RERE RENR ait
US$000  USS000  USS000  USS000 - USS000 - USS000  USS000 - USS000
F£1 T#rT T#r F#x  FErT  FET  FET  FER
(Note 28)  (Note29)  (Note29)  (Note29)  (Note29)  (Note 29)
(Wi28) (Wi29) (Wa29)  (Wit29) (Wit29) (W#29)
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1R18 = = 10,076 (7.021) 449 (38) 10,006 13,472
Profit for the year ERHE — - — - — — 2513 2513
Exchange differences arising B E &5 EBHE £H
on translating foreign ERER
operations — — — — — (21) — (1)
Total comprehensive income  FR2 AN EBE
for the year = = = = = 1) 2,513 2,49
Issuance of shares by initial  BBENAREERS
public offering ) 258 13,567 = = = = = 13,825
Capitalisation issue ERLES 774 (774) — — — — — —
Appropriation to statutory  RRUEERBAES
surplus reserve — — — — 133 — (133) —
At 31 December 2019and  12019%12A31B R
1 January 2020 202041R18 1032 12793 10076 (7021) 582 (59) 12386 29,789
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - - - - 2,021 2,021
Exchange differences arising R E G EBFHEEH
on translating foreign EREE
operations - - - - - 142 - 142
Total comprehensive income  ER2ANEEE
for the year - - - - - 142 2,021 2,163
Appropriation to statutory  RREERBAES
Surplus reserve - - - - 114 - (114) -
At31December2020  12020%12A31H 102 12798 10076 (7021) 696 8 14203 31,952
* Items with value below US$1,000 - EEEHA1,000E T IBEE

BREEMBERAF 20204 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12H31H I F &

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes Uss$’000 US$'000
B it FETT FET
Cash flows from operating HETBMBRSRER
activities
Profit before income tax AR & B 45 At Al Al E 2,549 3,560
Adjustments for: AT & I8 /E B 8 B
Amortisation of life insurance ASREZSEH
policy deposits 8 22 34
Amortisation of intangible assets mILAESE 8 74 72
Bank interest income |ITH B A 6 (8) (80)
Depreciation of property, plant ME BMELZETE
and equipment 8 557 475
Imputed interest income on life ASRERZSHHERE
insurance policy deposits A E WA 6 (46) (43)
Interest expenses MERXZ 7 889 1,027
Provision for allowance for 2 5 WK IE H) 78 5
expected credit loss on trade EEERERIIRE
receivables 19 268 111
Rent concessions HEER 6 4) —
Operating cash flows before LEESEHAINKE
working capital changes REME 4,301 5,156
Decrease/(increase) in inventories  7F & @ 4 (& 1) 1,233 (6,385)
Increase in trade and bills B 5 W RIE K I
receivables S M (9,494) (7,036)
Decrease/(increase) in FENRIE EHekEM
prepayments, deposits and other  J& Y 5% 8 &k (38 40)
receivables 5,807 (6,472)
(Decrase)/increase in trade and B 5 RN R IE R ER
bills payables E8OR D), L (2,207) 6,489
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, EFTIEE - HBER
contract liabilities and other H i RBECRD)
payables 30 (988) 683
Net cash used in operations KEERHFMARESFE (1,348) (7,565)
Income tax paid EATFT15 (1,588) (127)
Net cash used in operating KETHFMARSFAE
activities (2,936) (7,692)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z2020F 12531 H I F /&

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes Uss$’000 US$'000
B it FETT FET
Cash flows from investing BEGTSMBRERE
activities
Purchases of property, plantand B EW% - BMENKE
equipment 13 (605) (136)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEEEE 14 (18) —
Payment of life insurance policy AEREZESMNK
deposit — (524)
Increase in amounts due from JEE L5 2 Bk 75 K TR 3E AN
related parties (1) (4)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEBRITERRLD
bank deposits (3% ) 324 (929)
Bank interest received B IR 1T F B 6 8 80
Net cash used in investing BREFESMARETHE
activities (292) (1,513)
Cash flows from financing RESTEBMBRSERE
activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares @B & X AR E31T
by initial public offering, net of IR0 TS 5K IE - fkR
share issuance expenses B EITHRZ — 13,825
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE RFT1ENIA 34(b) 34,646 3,863
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER 34(b) (29,755) (3,767)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEE — X2
— Principal 34(b) (420) (414)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEEHEAE —FE
— Interest 34(b) (24) (39)
Interest paid SENRAPS (865) (988)
Net cash generated from REEERE
financing activities H&FHE 3,582 12,480
Net increase in cash and cash HeRAESEED
equivalents B 0% EE 354 3,275
Cash and cash equivalents at FVHEERBELZEEY
beginning of the year 6,263 2,874
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEgFHgr e
changes (575) 114
Cash and cash equivalents atend EXIRE R L% EY
of the year 21 6,042 6,263
EEEREEARAT 2020F5% 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

1.

Corporate information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 16 August 2016. The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The Company’s principal place of business is
Unit No. A, 13th Floor, Block 1, Leader Industrial
Centre, N0s.188-202 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 16 July 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company
while its principal subsidiaries (together with the
Company, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are mainly engaged in the provision of customised
reference designs which are bundled together
with the sale of integrated circuits (“ICs”) products
and other electronic components as a package to
customers in both Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), which is
measured as fair value. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies in note 3.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and the investment holding
subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) and subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong have their functional currency in United States
Dollar ("US$"), and subsidiaries established in the
PRC have their functional currency in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements
have been presented in US$ as the directors of
the Company consider that it is more appropriate
to adopt US$ as the Group’s and the Company’s
presentation currency. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, for the first time, in the current year:
Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS1 (Revised)
and HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS
39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Conceptual Revised Conceptual Framework for
Framework Financial Reporting
for Financial

Reporting 2018

2.

REEE

HZE2020F12A31BILFEMNGZAY
BHREBEARAREMBRA - B
EAnBEFAEAZE KRS ((RA
AEEIAEMZEKSE ) HEmE
ERAABEEN  BERAZE
ARERAEVBRRAEANGE
HEE -HEEERFTHEMTEIAN

ARAMMEEESET((ET])
REBHBAARE(EBEERE
5 1) R Ml A SZ &Y 4% B 12 BB B R AT IA
Ko 70 & 78 TE M B SZ B B B 2t R] 1 A
ET(ERDAVEEE  MHXHE
R BARAARE AR
SAEERARBNZ2INEEE /R
2 AR AaMBHRERAERITES -
BRBEAN  IESBENERLAE
RFAME T AL -

(a) #ﬁ%}?ﬁ&@ﬂ%ﬂ(ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%iﬁ
|

AEFERAFEERNERES
ST A RAMEY AT AT AR
ERKEBMBRELEL)

(BESHENEIE EANTES
(BER(BE T
EB)EBR BT

(BEBBREES)
F3T (LB BITAK

(EAMBREEANFE) FAREERS
B (BRQIEN)E
IRR(BARBRE
EANETRE R

BFEHBERENRS CETVERE

ER BoER

FBENER

BEEEMEERARF 20204 FH

95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

2. REIEE
(a) FEPMEREIIKEEMBREE

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs

(Continued)

In addition, in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
early applied the Amendments to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, which
are mandatorily effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

Except as described below, the application
of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on early application of Amendment
to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has early applied the amendment
for the first time in the current year. The
amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is
a lease modification. The practical expedient
only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 that meets
all of the following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs

(Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment
to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes
applying HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16") if
the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no
impact to the opening retained profits at 1
January 2020. The Group has benefited from 3
months’ waiver of partial lease payments on the
lease. The Group has derecognised the part
of lease liability that has been extinguished
by the forgiveness of lease payments using
the discount rates originally applied to these
leases respectively, resulting in a decrease in
the lease liabilities of approximately US$4,000,
which has been recognised as other income in
the consolidated profit or loss for the current
year.

2. REIEE
(a) FEPMEREIIKEEMBREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

2. Basis of preparation (continued) 2. IWBEE
(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that issued but (b) EfEMEE E2020%F12H31
not yet effective for the year ended 31 BIEEEERERPERES
December 2020 (EEMBHREER)

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a number of amendments to HKFRSs which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020 and which have not been
adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These include the followings which
may be relevant to the Group.

BHEGRAUBEHETIER &
BaestiAeE B M AE £2020
FI2AMBIEFERARERR TR
WEREESEETERERNEH
X ZECHE AW B HE LR E
SR BEHRAEEAT AR E AL
BEHEEE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT RS 2% 5
R CTER:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 ~ — Phase 2
and HKFRS 16

(BAMBREEMNEI: . MEEEYE—F KR
(BB LHER)E39FR
(BAMBEREEMNETR -
(BAMBIREEN)FIR R
(BAMBEREERN)S165%

1 January 2021

20211A1R

R
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
(Revised)
(BERBREER)EIR R SIER 2022F1A1H
(BEFTERIR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use
(BEEHEIDEI6REIER NE BERRE —HRERAEMNZMERE 2022F1A18
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
(BEGFERDEITRET R BRMSH -—BITEHKK 2022F1R1H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018—2020
(BERBREEINEFIR <<Eﬁﬁmin§%ﬁiﬂw2018¢§2020$%@%@2¢r§ 202251710
g
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
(Revised) Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)
(BB ER)E1R BEEIBRARDHIERDREEZRBESR (2020F) 202361418
(BT AR Z BB
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023

(BAMBREEAETR RREORERER

2023%1A18

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined

HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture
(BEAMBREEAEIRK KREFEEBEARIAECEZCHANEELE GET

R
(BAGFMEADFBRETAR HIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

2. IREEE
(b) EfEMIEE E2020%F12H31

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Amendments to HKFRSs that issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has not identified any aspects
of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. The actual impacts upon the
initial adoption of the standards may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the
Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s annual report for the year ending 31
December 2021. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in the consolidated financial
statements.

B 1L & KA [ EES
(BFEMBREEDE

AEBEEFHEZZEETAR
BRERENTESEE - A&
& B A 2 5 B F R A T[]
HXEHGEVERREEKX
FE BRERNENNERY
B EAEFEEZNRETE
BRERECS BRI EAER
TR Bt ERERNE X ER
ZEEAFTNAEBE E2021F
12A31HLEFEENFRPER
RIFEMBRRPERERZE
B ZR AEBNMAEEEE S
AR EE(BIEBERE) -

3. EXEBRME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies
(a) Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

(a) FEEEHAMEBATE

These consolidated financial statements
include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

ZEREVBRRBELRARRK
HBAREE 20205612 831H
IEFENYMBHRER - WBARE
RAREE B ZHEa
MNER(BEEBEER) 2K
EEHHELHEKEEHREBKHA
BomAERKRIEZEES - W
BE S A 1% & T {5 B B #E ) (BD
SAEEBRETEREHEA
BESMNREEN) ¥ EZEMO
HEF - BDENAS 4 B RE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries (a) FEEFHMBAT ()

(Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, EANFEESIBEERERE

less than a majority of the voting or similar HRLORARZENEERELSE

rights of an investee, the Group considers all LN REBRAGEHERE

relevant facts and circumstances in assessing HRERHEBR IS EREMN

whether it has power over an investee, ENHBEERERL BE: —

including:-

e the contractual arrangement with the other e HEEBEHRMHAMBRERE
vote holders of the investee; RBAGTUHNEAREE:

e rights arising from other contractual e HEMABANRHMEENRE
arrangements; and ARk

e the Group’s voting rights and potential e AEEHNREELEBER
voting rights. ZHE-

The financial statements of subsidiaries are MEBARMNMBRETEA X%

prepared for the same reporting period as FEERIZERNQFERN RS

the Company, using consistent accounting MRS - MBARMEEHRAS

policies. The results of subsidiaries are EEGEGIE 2 BRREE AR

consolidated from the date on which the WiEEEGREAREZELRELE

Group obtains control, and continue to be I EERRIE -

consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Consolidated profit or loss and each FEEakAMEIEKE S A

component of other comprehensive income BE D BB RSB & QR %#

are attributed to the owners of the parent of BARFEERERD - BIF IR

the Group and to the non-controlling interests, SENFERESDREAMS

even if this results in the non-controlling e MBEEREARRIERS - #&

interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group % WARRIZHREGEE A KRR

transactions, balances, income and expenses ZEEH -

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

(a) ZFEEEHMEBAS (B

(Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the consolidated profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any investment
retained and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less any identified impairment loss. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

EREEELRBRBRTAKEBA
Al AR AT = IR GIEE
TEH—HKZALBEE (L KK
BREHFEHEMRERRE
4 12 ) B -

AEBMHEHEB ARG EE
n B AN EERREYNE
NAHIEFIE - AERERDERS
N

fieh N 5= [ 2% 25 7 B /B /2 =) A 22 o
B LERELNGSBERET
JIMENERETE () EWKE
MARBEETAREREND
SABME 2 4870 Ko (i) B BB & &) K2
EAFERESNEE(BED
BREBENREEE  £ATRN
Httembam R AsERE
HEHORERRAKEEEEZ
ENHEEESRENR—EESE
MOBRERSWERHIRE N E
(RIBERME) °

B R A R B AR B AR A AT 2 2
BB (E 1B K A1 A B 5 iR R
RINER - (IMB AR XBERELD
AR E W R BRI B AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (b) 2 EHEEE
Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can H2020F1A1HE + AEEnJ#
elect to apply an optional concentration test, BERFBRXSGEEEAFNESH
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that BRI - AT b — B
permits a simplified assessment of whether EEMREERBWIF—HFEK -
an acquired set of activities and assets is not MK IEEERBENRAAER
a business. The concentration test is met if BEAR &2 E & P& E EA] &5
substantially all of the fair value of the gross BEN—HAEURBRNEES -
assets acquired is concentrated in a single A EERERH - XA MrE
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable EETERReMASEEY -
assets. The gross assets under assessment EEHMIBEEERRBIELERIE
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred BEFEZEE - WEEETPE
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from Bl ZIBEHREERETER
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the W IR R BRIEE— L -

concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business
and no further assessment is needed.

Business combinations are accounted for using X EHERAKBEANR - R®
the acquisition method. The consideration X EHPEEENHERD
transferred in a business combination is AEEE ERUBEELREE
measured at fair value, which is calculated as FIEZEENAAER T~&E
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of AENRNERESAESAD
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities BERAEERBRBEKER
measured by the Group to the former owners WIESIEMEBITARENEZR 2
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued BRANGTE - RBREBEHE -
by the Group in exchange for control of the AEEEERERANEBEERER
acquiree. For each business combination, BIERERELHREKESA
the Group elects whether to measure non- BAEEFEMNMETEBRE
controlling interests that are present ownership BB EmBEREERERFAEA
interests and entitle their holders to a EREEDHNEREETFE
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets WIEEREZR - BEMRBK N
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at TIREAERH o

the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the acquirees’ identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

(b) ¥BEHEBEE (5

(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it
assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being
the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquire over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred,
the excess is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive
income as a bargain purchase gain or changes
in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity.

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

EAEERBEBE  §REA

R WEENEEBERENE
ARG RFEEAEN SR EE
REBE  NETBEND BN
R HBEREERS WD FTET AL
MESHNTOHRARITELA -

BEENEXAGE DS
EUEBLRRNWERREEMIE
ERERSBAMNE DT E
AHEMNEERAAEBENK
BEHMANFENERE - HETK
& - fisi BT W BB AT 8B B BE K P
EEARERWBEENOFEREER
EEEEE A - B2
RiRe 2 HK S %EPEEMF%J%
Tﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬂ&/\ﬂzi?éﬁé\—“@%%

X HERIR - BE R
RERERRX(WAB)FE RN
RAVBRRKRTDH 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (b) ¥EBEHERBEE (9)

(Continued)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually HESFETRENRASWMEE
or more frequently if events or changes in FREGHHBEIELBREREE
circumstances indicate that the carrying value AIBE A R(E - A BETERER
may be impaired. The Group performs its WAH - AEESFMN12A31H
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 ETENERENS -  RETR
December. For the purposes of impairment B BmEREE BEAEE
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the TEETEE B XS & O 89 1 R R E
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of XamEReELEM (B
cash-generating units) that is expected to EEEMAR) MAmAEER
benefit from the synergies of the combination, WEMEESBEREENEEZ
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities FEUSNEMAR - BEER
of the Group are assigned to those units or AfEEEPE AR ELE BN
groups of units. Impairment is determined by (ReELEMAR) A kES
assessing the recoverable amount of the cash- EmET WHEeEAEMGR
generating units (group of cash-generating SEABMAR)AATIKRE R
units) to which the goodwill relates. If the EREREE Ao RRER
recoverable amount of the cash-generating KUABESREEZEMCGIEE
units (group of cash-generating units) is less EBEMARNMEAEENERT
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss B ABBBEZELANZEEEE
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount WEEEBEZRE DR EZEN
of any goodwill allocated to the unit (group of WEMEE - i EEBHRIE
cash-generating units) and then to the other BRI REEZMHEREL -

assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash- ERENBERESELEEM(HK
generating unit (or group of cash-generating ReEEEMARN BEZEMAN
units) and part of the operation within that WE D EBFHEEE - AR L
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated ERRF  HEEKHENEE
with the operation disposed of is included in MAZEBRREES - EIEE
the carrying amount of the operation when ATHENHBIREMBEESE
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. BRAREBNIEDBEEELESA
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances WABEEBEE -

is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(c) W% WMERREE

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less provisions for depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the item has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs,
is normally charged to the consolidated profit
or loss in the year in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the item, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of the item. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is sold, its cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from
the consolidated financial statements and
any gain or loss resulting from the disposal,
being the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
is included in consolidated profit or loss.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line
method, based on the estimated economic
useful lives of the individual assets, as follows:

ME - BENRRBEERABTE
BEMBREBRX(WA)IEK -

ME - BENRZKBEEHEBENKAE
REBEERSEEERHE
BRI B 38 B A8 8 b B DAME &
REMEMELENTRAEERRE
AR o RIA B R 46 1E 1F 1R P 4R
R (MEERRERAE
RAR)BERNXHEFENEAR
SmAERPHER - WEABREBR
ZERXESARRKEREBER
7B B Al S R R B A s R
BRI g ENME/ERB I
AR - W EME - BERRE
A HRARZRFATERES
MBmRP B - BLEMFE
MREHER(BILEEEMRS
REFRAEFEMENZRE) K

JIAFEE R °

ERWTEREED KA
ERFHRBEREFTRIFE
B

Leasehold 5 years or over the lease terms, MEMEEE AFEHAH AR
improvement whichever is shorter RERE)

Furniture, fixture and 3—10 years g RER ZETE
equipment B

Motor vehicles 3—5 years nE =ERfF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (c) ME BERRHE®
Where parts of an item of property, plant and WE BMEAXEEBEENHLD
equipment have different useful lives, the cost ERSW IR - AZEEKANK
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis BEBEESRE TR E D AERE
among the parts and each part is depreciated RIITE - FAEE - B ERF
separately. Residual values, estimated HERFELTEZZEIREMBRFE
useful lives and the depreciation method are A REL TR (HEA) o

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment TIBRERNYE - BELXREE
including any significant part initially BEBEREEZAXNLY)KLESK
recognised is derecognised upon disposal FHAFHAIEERTEHR
or when no future economic benefits are KRR TR 25 - AR IERER o R
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or EERIIMRAFENGEEERT
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the BROEEIMENE MK =
consolidated profit or loss in the year the asset HEBRDEBAEEHEEMREX
is derecognised is the difference between the EFREEEEmMENERE -

net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

(d) Intangible assets other than goodwill (d) HEUIINEREE
Intangible assets of customer relationship REBEHPRENT B R
acquired in a business combination are BEEEREBE>RER LA
recognised separately from goodwill and FERERKBEEHRN AL EER
are initially recognised at their fair value at RMmMEBEKRENEERRAE
the acquisition date, and software acquired A4 BR A BR 4 F B 2R R 5T 8E
separately and with finite useful lives are kEZFHREBRX(E)IKE -

carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible MR E EEBEHHRK
assets acquired with finite useful lives EBHEEERIUFEAFHNER
are reported at costs less accumulated BEERKABRERGTH#HERE
amortisation and any accumulated impairment MRFHREEXE®R - JERAF
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with HERMNEFEEENEIHIZH
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight- HETRIE A F BB RARER o
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The HETRAIERAFRREE AR
estimated useful life and amortisation method SWmEARRS - FEEEPNR
are reviewed at the end of each reporting LIRBHELEAR -

period, with the effective of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(d) Intangible assets other than goodwill

(e)

(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

The Group’s intangible assets have finite useful
lives. All intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following period:-

Software 10 years
Customer 4—7 years
relationship

Impairment of non-financial assets
other than goodwill

When an indication of impairment exists,
or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the value in use of the asset
or cash-generating unit to which it belongs
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. EXE

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such impairment loss is credited to
the consolidated profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis and includes all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1 08 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020

STBUREE (o)

() k&MBEEREMBREEIN)

(f)

(&)

REREHRFEREH T
REUR AR /WETEE’E—I

TBERFEHAIGEDRD - HEE
LRRBR ﬁ'JfEquTH&@i%EO
SERERHEELINNE ERE
BREERRBEEZEENT
WE SO G BELEE(RET
ARE - BT ESREBEFE
VWERZEERDRERRD
BRTASEE N REE G
T -  ZMERINED
REELXHBEGFAGZSEZ -

#45

FEERRAEAERFEME
FEEEETIRR - RARTES
tﬁgf‘if@zi BB RBKA
E#EFEEEEMME RER
EEAMBRABOEMAA -

AR FEDEREREROMGE
ﬁ@ﬁ’%ﬁ‘i?ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁmlﬁk$&
EEHEERTER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Investments and other financial assets
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include financial
assets at FVTOCI, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. Financial
assets are recognised on the trade date.

Debt instruments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market which
are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
allowance for impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial assets.

(f)

(9)

#8580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets

(9 BREHHEBEREE &)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL’), except that at the date of initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income (“OCI") if that
equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required to
be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/
receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired
(see note 3(h)). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the fair value
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in
equity instruments are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Dividends are included in
the other income line item in consolidated
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in consolidated profit or
loss The net gain or loss recognised in
consolidated profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the other income
line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12431H i F &

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of financial assets

(hy EMEERE

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“‘ECL") on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost. For
trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the
use of the lifetime expected losses provision
for all trade receivables without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

When estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls which
is the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(h) €M EERESE)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
on a forward looking basis whether financial
assets carried at amortised cost is credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
data:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or
past due event; and

(c) it is becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assets
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to write off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; or

— an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active

market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade and
bills receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. EXE

3. Summary of significant accounting
pO|iCiES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where ECL is measured on a
collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped based on:

— Nature of financial instruments;
— Past-due status;

— Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

— External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in
consolidated profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and
bills receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

(i) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include
trade and bills payables, accruals and other
payables, promissory notes, bank borrowings
and lease labilities. Financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

1 20 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2020

STBUREE (o)

(h) =MEEREm®R

(i)

(v)

B 15 B 518 5951 B R &

58 (%)

—RmEs  BHEEEED
BIESOENNEENFRE
AHBRERBEEAERTE
%%W%ﬁéﬁg@%%
BREMNEERAXIIR) M
Zm o BHEEBRKL
ﬁ%ﬁﬁgiﬁﬁﬂ%i
TEEBREER EBT2
?'ﬁﬂ TERUTEES
ZH :

||]]

0;

0]

— TRITAMNE:
— B

BEBANMEE - HER
TE R

— HNEMERRIR(ImA) -

En
ﬁ
%%
H
mﬁ
3
ﬁ-
|
ﬁ

"‘"/\
/Z\VT\IZI

518 o M R AR K
7 #8 %%%%_i@ 5 18
RER -

=

0
ﬁ
o

gt %?a
sam &
St

B S ) 72 ¥ 38 R
ﬁ
ﬁ

tMAaR

AEENCREEEREESRN
HRERENEER B RER
HhEMNFRIE - A ZEE - RIT
BERAEEEE EMBEEAR
SEKRIAENENBRXHETLN
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@wu °

EREBEVBRAABEREE

EZRBUATER  HRUAER
MBEILBHKAGTE - EEH

FT¥aE
LEB

R R TR RS - BUB S
Alri-ERemBE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(j) Foreign currency translation

Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are initially
recorded using the functional currency rates
ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary
items that are designated as part of the hedge
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item. The functional currencies of certain
overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than
US$. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the
Group at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and
expense items are translated into US$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(j) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) PEBRE®)

The resulting exchange differences are FREECEHLZREAHLME
recorded in OC| and the cumulative balance ﬁﬂ&*&%ﬂ EERET AR & HE
is included in translation reserve in the mEFEBRAOELFEE o HEBI
consolidated statement of changes in equity. EBE - RELFEERERN R

On disposal of a foreign operation, the EZ}’iﬂ\%ﬁ‘%EFﬁE’JﬁL%EJri
deferred cumulative amount recognised in R REME2E K=
translation reserve relating to that particular %%EPEE R WEEBIINEBE

ENEAEEMMBSEME

foreign operation is recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Any goodwill

ENEREERABEMNEREE
N BEABIRRSEIN

arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation X¥BHMEENERE Wik mE
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying E]E o

amounts of assets and liabilities arising on

acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities

of the foreign operation and translated at the

closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement MIREREMERMS - BING

of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas BRAMNBEEMRENIZRBRER
subsidiaries are translated into US$ at the EREMNEREEXBLERET °
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the REFELETHEENTING
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of BARIIRERE NIRZFREME
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout FHEEMELSETT

the year are translated into US$ at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(k) Revenue recognition

(k) W A\ GER2

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue
is recognised when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to a customer, as
follows: —

WARE Wk ek HERRE
BiftE - RASERBRAEFE
FEAFERIREETBROER
MBERT WA TARER  #
BT : —

Revenue from sale of goods which are HIRBEEENERHEEKA
bundled with services
Time of recognition & 58 05 &7

The Group provides customised reference
designs which are bundled together with
the sale of ICs products and electronic
components and delivery to the customers’
designated locations as a package to
customers. Sales are recognised when the
control of the ICs products and electronic
components including the bundled services,
being when the ICs products and electronic
components are delivered to the customers,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the ICs
products and electronic components. The
Group allows customers to return the defective
products in the range from two weeks to one
month after the delivery. No warranty or sales
rebate is offered to the customers.

Measurement of revenue

Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts and is shown
net of value-added tax and after eliminating
sales within the Group. No element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with
a credit term not more than four months. A
receivable is recognised when the control of
the ICs products and electronic components
are delivered to the customers as this is
the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate
the likelihood and provide for sales return for
the goods sold at the time of sale.

AEBERHEEH N2 ERS
HEICEmKRETTHEEH
& AER—BFHARINTE
FiEEHE - BICEMREFTT
1 (B 8 o & BR #%) A9 #22 il 4 (BD
ICEMEEFTHERINTER
FARY BAIERFERFPER
ICERNMREFTMHHRBEITER
R - HERIHE - NAEBERFFER
ERERNMBE—EARED
BRREHER - BiARZFFREMH
RIESLHEETM -

WA B 5t 2

HEWMANBEESHTRENE
SRR WRHRAKEEEE
BRI EETRRER - HRH
ENERBTEBNMEAR - Hit
TrEEAREER - AREN
RE Mz EFLB —RER -
BERYEBEEKENREHEE - &
WHRIBARICE fn R EF T2l
BN TEPRER - 25K R
AR AT HERHE R mr Al e
MAMHEREFTIRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)

)

Revenue from sale of goods which are
bundled with services (Continued)

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the
Group expects to refund some or all of the
consideration received from customers.

For a sale of products with a right of return, the
Group recognises revenue for the transferred
products in the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled. A right
of return asset is also recognised for the right
to recover products from a customer.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the
Group which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in the central defined contribution
pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme as
specified by the local municipal government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

U]

(m)

Other employee benefits (Continued)
Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee long service payment

The provision for long service payment is
provided based on the employees’ basic
salaries and their respective length of service
in accordance with the applicable rules and
regulations in their respective countries of
employment.

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current
and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside consolidated profit or loss
is recognised outside consolidated profit or
loss, either in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

3. EXEHHBEBME

() EtESEHN®

ESTEFHHKIE

BEEAZANFREFBNESR
RHER - YERBEEREHRE
B EIRMH RS ME L/ HarF
BEEFELETER -

ESERBIRH 2

EHREBBHENREEE
AHehEEEERBFEER
mESBEBBRONEREZER
AT UAES o

(m) Fi 8

Prisiife BN ER FE A 71 1R I B 5
MIBZM e B FEREEERE
ERNAREROAEHRIER
AR ER > MREM2mEEK
SRERREDETER -

MR AEERABIEAY
B A 765 1 B AR [T 3l T 1 S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(m) Fife ¥ (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

— in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

— in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(n)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on
a net basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.

(m) Fife ¥ (&)

(n)

EETIRE E DR @ ER &R
THIRERN X TBEREAR
RARRTAMN BRI HIAZE 2 =0
AR R E TR I B ER T IAH
oo RERBELERREENE
BEPREHFAG  RAIGEER
%) & ER Tt A LA [B] 2 BB =X B
EEFR A EERER

EEBBADEZBEHNEEZER
SREGEEEHRERANTERRL
RIEREBESHRE S EH KK
LEHIEMRE(RBR)FEM
EAMB -

EEEHEEERBESILRA
—HBERBEBKHNAEN - AR
SERNAFEEELEHR
MBEEENAE  AELEHE
EENRBEAHEERH -

BeERBEEEFED

AekREFEVERRTERS
KOoEETFR - AREBAR —RE
=@E AR TR KA BE R
REMBERBEELZIER
ROZEBaERPERE -

BEEEMEERARF 20204 FH

127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(o) Related parties (o) FABEER

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

OR

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

(iii)y the entities and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(0)

(p)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the
Company.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors of the Company
for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following
the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS
8 Operating Segments (“HKFRS 8") are
the same as those used in its consolidated
financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(q) Leases (q) HE

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the initial recognition, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the modification date. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets, the Group recognises right-
of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use) at cost. Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
property, plant and equipment, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(q) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Groups
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

3. EXEHHBEBME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(q) Leases (Continued) (9 HE®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) EXEEELBERBNAE)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEBEE)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities MinH 2%  HHEAEBBES

are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and interest on lease
liabilities. The interest on lease liabilities is
charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over

MERBENRAR 52
ENFERAGERBEERER
BZRAE - HEREHH LR
HEMRNAERARa M EtE@E
W&k - AT HENE
BHRER RN R -2

the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liabilities for each period.

AEEKEEABRERAMK
MRAKTESREHER -

The Group presents lease liabilities as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Lease modifications in relation to the Covid-19- HCOVID-19/H = Z )8 5
related rent concessions ) E £ 5T

FECOVID-19R IEEZERMm
ELXMESREmE  HHFEUNU

In relation to rent concessions that occurred
as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic, the Group has elected to apply TEFEKYE AEECEREER
the practical expedient not to assess whether AI{TRE HFED H— HEBEE
the change is a lease modification if all of the EEBHEEEE

following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in e HENNREZHEHMES
revised consideration for the lease that is HEREBEEEEZEZEHAH
substantially the same as, or less than, the HEREXRBMAERI DR
consideration for the lease immediately ZHEERE:

preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects e HFHMHEENKHRERZZE
only payments originally due on or before R R M2021F6A30H K 2
30 June 2021; and IR ORI/ N

e there is no substantive change to other o MHEREMIMKEKKEMHHE
terms and conditions of the lease. mEKRKEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(q) Leases (Continued)

(r)

(s)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications in relation to the Covid-19-
related rent concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities
are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that
a future outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. When the effect of discounting is
material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their
value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the
grant related to expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systemic basis over the
periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

(q) HE®H)

(s)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(t) Borrowing costs t) BREE
All borrowing costs that are not directly WIEERBREGEREESH
attributable to expenditure on qualifying assets WA EBRAKARNEEBREE
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss in meBERER -

the period in which they are incurred.

(u) Fair value measurement (v AREETE

The Group measures its equity investments AEBEREZMEHRERAAE
at fair value at the end of each reporting B EARERKRE AAEHE
period. Fair value is the price that would be REMS2EENGTEAHE
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer TZBERFRXSPHEEEEMK
a liability in an orderly transaction between DR EEEBEMXNZER -
market participants at the measurement date. ARBEFEDNRBELEEREE
The fair value measurement is based on FEEERENRINEEXARE
the presumption that the transaction to sell WEEMSH(ELEEEMS
the asset or transfer the liability takes place BATNEEXEBENRAEDR
either in the principal market for the asset MIZETHREMIEL - EE5k
or liability, or in the absence of a principal XEEBEMBERAEEAE
market, in the most advantageous market for AWM - EERBENAAE
the asset or liability. The principal or the most BEhEmE2EE(REEGIN
advantageous market must be accessible KELBENRTE)REEXE
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a BEEERFANBRE -

liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial FEMEENAABEFESS
asset takes into account a market participant’s k2 BEEEURARE K&
ability to generate economic benefits by using THREBEERZEE X% EE
the asset in its highest and best use or by HETEAZARERKERSE
selling it to another market participant that FRZEEMNEMMIZ2EE -
would use the asset in its highest and best use. WmEEKBER=OBET °

The Group uses valuation techniques that AEEFRAEARNE@ABL A
are appropriate in the circumstances and for ERMHBBRIGFTELNEE " 88
which sufficient data are available to measure XAREEAHEBRAIERERHA
fair value, maximising the use of relevant HBEERZERLSEATATER

observable inputs and minimising the use of B A BUR B B BT o
unobservable inputs.
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3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(u) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(u) 2REEEE

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:-

FIEREAMBERRAEBAR
BAnBENEERAELE
REQAREBEFEEEMEBE
RERER R &8 ABUR - BT

NREBEFHEIE: —

Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F—&: ERXHREEXER
in active markets for identical assets PRUERBRT SR RE (K
or liabilities L)

Level 2. based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3. based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

F_H: EAREREAREE
AMEMEBEBEANK
1K A% 5l 8 A BB S AT
EERFH(EERHXE
B A ER M

F ERERBARER
AMEMEBEANK
AR &8 A BB R
ARBEEGEENEE
£ i

RIREEEEENES MR
RERNEERABRMS - AK
BMEEARSREHREFHTG
DE(ERBAREEFERSR
mEBEANNKERR & AR
BIREINAEAEREHAE
B o
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4.

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements requires the directors of the Company
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The directors of the Company have considered
the development, selection and disclosure of
the Group’s critical accounting judgements and
estimates.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)
Allowance for ECL on trade receivables

The policy for the allowance for ECL on trade
receivables of the Group is assessed for trade
debtors with significant balances or collectively
using a provision matrix appropriate groupings.
As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the
impairment for its trade receivables because
trade receivables consist of balances due from a
large number of customers which share common
risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers’ ability to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The
estimated credit rate loss rates are estimated based
on historical default rates of the trade debtors
and are adjusted with forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
The allowance for ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about ECL of the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in note 33.

Estimation of accrued purchase rebates

The Group has entered into the ship and debit
arrangements with certain suppliers during the year.
Under the arrangements, the purchases of materials
and goods from these suppliers are initially charged
to the Group at their standard prices and then
rebates are given by these suppliers to the Group
after the materials have been sold to the Group’s
customers. The rebate rates vary depending on
the scale and sold volume of customers. At the
reporting dates, the costs of inventories purchased
under the ship and debit arrangements are required
to be reassessed and adjusted for the estimated
likely rebates. A considerable amount of judgement
and estimates is required in determining the
appropriate amount to accrue for the purchase
rebates and the net of such rebate cost of
inventories. If conditions which have an impact on
the purchase rebates differ from those assessed
previously, further changes to the carrying value of
inventories may be required.

4.

B XT st H 8 & &5t

fli st R R &% ()
ESEKAEENEEEREER

AEBEFRUKREEREEESE
EENBRRTHEEEREHRNE
ZEBARKHESED MR ER
METERIGH REAEEEE
RREE BRESZERUFAEESE
WREABARRRFENEFZ
B MxEFERREPRRAN
R ABRIEIRIA RS » BA
SEEREEARRIEESRK
RERE- BFAEEERXRES
SEBANESL ZHOXRMGE > LiRE
7838 JZ B AN 30 A5 7 B A BE 1B R AE
LHEE - -AHEEREBRESRG
AAEPREE c EEASEESRENR
HIE ) T8 B E B B 1B B B X Y 5E33
HEE -

KE &1 7R 48 [E] 70 B9 15 5t

FR-AEEERETHERBII LT
EMEBRLH - KBERFLY A%
BELREEBRAZSFHERRER
MEEER  ARESMHBELAS
B EFREZSHERS TR
EHRBORREFHRIR R IHER
RBERH  AHRBEZEEMELR
HRENGFENRAETENGER
SLEETRIBE M I ETTHE - X
BOHELAMEECBRBHEFE
(2] +0 A AN )3 B8 Ry 78 1 th K 2 19 I B &%
fhat - EHRBONEERZ ENK
HEREMFEEMEZE - AIAHER
MEEEEEEHE-—FTEE -
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4.

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)
Allowance for inventories

Management carries out inventory review
periodically, at least at the end of each reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete items. A
considerable amount of judgement and estimates
is required in determining such allowance. If
conditions which have an impact on the net
realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required. Management reviews
the inventory ageing analysis at the end of reporting
period and identifies for slow-moving inventory
that are no longer suitable for consumption and
saleable. Management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice price and current market conditions.
When the inventories which have been impaired are
sold subsequently, the provision of impairment loss
will be reversed to the extent of impairment losses
previously recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Provision for income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement
is required in determining the tax liabilities to be
recognised. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises provisions for
tax based on estimates of the taxes that are likely to
become due. The Group believes that its provision
for tax is adequate for each of financial year based
on its assessment of many factors including past
experience and interpretations of tax law. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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FEVBHRRME
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Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Unlisted equity investments measured at FVTOCI
was acquired during the year and revalued by
the directors of the Company by reference to the
valuation performed by independent professional
valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer has
used a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the
management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market conditions. If there are changes
in the assumptions used for the valuation, the fair
value of the unlisted equity investments will change.
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
the unlisted equity investments was approximately
US$6,160,000 (2019: Nil). Details of information
about the valuation were disclosed in note 33.

Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which
the Group may earn revenue and incur expenses,
and is identified on the basis of the internal
management reporting information that is provided
to and regularly reviewed by executive directors
of the Company in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment. During the
year, the executive directors received and reviewed
information on the performance of the Group as a
whole. Accordingly, it is determined that the Group
has only one single operating segment, which is
determined as sale of ICs products and electronic
components including bundled services, for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

4.

B XT st H 8 & &5t

fli st R R &% ()
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5.

Segment information (continuea) 5. FEB&EF a)
The Company is an investment holding company KRRB—RIBEERAR A& E
and the principal place of the Group’s operation WEELEMERBAERTE - 3R
is in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the purpose BA(EEM B REER)FS K EM
of geographical segment information disclosures BHogERms  ~AEERREER
under HKFRS 8, the Group regarded Hong Kong HERHM AEEMBERBINKREFR
as its place of domicile. All the Group’s revenue IR A AL ENB AR ME AR
from external customers is presented based on E2  MAKEBFERDEECTE
the location of the operating subsidiaries and the RASRERZRS  RAALEBEFAR
Group’s non-current assets (excluding life insurance HrElRasceREE RELERIE
policy deposits, financial assets at FVTOCI and BE)BAEEMEMZINNT
deferred tax assets) is presented based on the
location of assets as follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
uss’ooo US$°000
FET FETT

Year ended 31 December HE12A31HLLEE
Revenue recognised at a point X -—RZABEROKA

in time

Hong Kong BB 103,825 68,651

The PRC H 50,094 32,810

153,919 101,461

At 31 December »12H31H
Non-current assets FEREBEE

Hong Kong BB 958 344

The PRC s 408 815

1,366 1,159
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Segment information (continuea) 5. FEB&EF a)
Revenue from customers which individually RERN - EAEE LU AF(510% LA
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the EHERAERPKAMDT

Group during the year is as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FETT
Customer A BEPA 41,019 11,856
Customer B EFB 22,058 11,480
During the year, the Group generated revenue REA - AEENKAEEZREH
primarily from the sale of five categories of ICs ETHABICERREFTH B
products and electronic components, comprising FOBHZEREERTE (i)E#
for: (i) mobile devices and smart charging; (ii) 2 (i) F RS R B ' (iv)
motor control; (iii) sensor and automation; (iv) St — 15 ([LEDJ) BRPR : K (v) 5148
light-emitting diode (“LED”) lighting; and (v) radio (TS DER - TRHFIIRNE—
frequency (“‘RF”) power. The following table sets out REXER EmBEiEo8KA
the breakdown of the revenue recognised at a point BA 41 -
in time by product category:
2020 2019
2020 20194
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
Sales of ICs products and i EICE M
electronic components:- REFITHE: —
Mobile devices and smart charging % &R E R EETE 116,475 76,550
Motor control BB 1 17,042 11,843
Sensor and automation B kBB E 14,480 4,633
LED lighting LED #& 8 3,759 4,492
RF power 57 48 R 2,163 3,943
153,919 101,461
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6.

Revenue and other income

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities,
which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
income from sales of ICs products and electronic
components including the bundled services
delivered to the customers and recognised at a
point in time. Revenue and other income recognised
during the year are as follows:

6.

W 2 B HE i W A

AEEEZEBEHORB(TAR
SREMNEXB)EHEICERRET
THEEXNTFTEPERE KM
HERNBEAXRE)AEEA R
FARRBH Mt R EBKRALT :

2020 2019
2020 20194
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
Revenue from contract with (BB BEHEERDE155E
customers within the scope of HEAEF S Kz
HKFRS 15, types of goods or 5 oo 3k AR 75 %8 R
services
Sale of ICs products and electronic & ICE @ &k EF Tt
components 153,919 101,461

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sale of ICs
products and electronic components including the
bundled services such that the above information
does not include information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations that had an
original expected duration of one year or less.
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6. WERHEMU A )

Revenue and other income (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

2020 2019
20204 20194
Us$’000 US$'000
F £ T FET
Other income E i A

Bank interest income R 17 F B A 8 80
Exchange gain, net b 5, I 2= ) #E 641 —
Government grants (note (a)) BX T #7 Bh (K47 22 (a) 178 —

Imputed interest income on life ASREZRENEEN SWA
insurance policy deposits 46 43
Rent concessions (note (b)) HeBER A ZED) 4 —
Others HAh 14 38
891 161

Notes:

B it

(a)

(b)

The amount primarily represents the government grants
which have been received during the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of subsidy for staff costs
according to the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”),
which was launched by The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, which aims to
provide time-limited financial support to the Group for the
period from June to November 2020 to retain employees
who may otherwise redundant. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingencies attached to these
subsidies.

The amount represents rent concessions from the
landlord in relation to the Covid-19 pandemic during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The concession does
not constitute to the lease modification by applying the
practical expedient that meets the conditions in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16.

ZEBEETEREHE2020F12A31B ILE
E - REEESRTREBRFHEHOMR
MEIFE(TRMEISTED 2 W a K
FE#E L - (R gt % 15T 81 B £ 120204 6
AENAHHERAEBIREERRE D
TEAGBRSHRHEZRES - Z5H
Bh#E R E PR R E T BE 2 1508 o

ZeFEHE2020F12A31BIEFE -
E T Covid- 19X BREBL TR ° B
BEBTAEBHK®EERF165%
AGBERIGMRVRIITEE 2% » B2
EHKEEE -

BEEEMEERARF 20204 FH

143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

7. Finance costs 7. BAERAK
2020 2019
20204 20194
Us$’000 US$'000
F £ T FET
Interest on bills payables e ZBA S 759 887
Interest on discounted bills ARIR BB A B 10 75
Interest on lease liabilities (note 25) T & & & (41 i#25) 24 39
Interest on short-term bank loans %2 HAR 1T E X7 B 96 26
889 1,027
8. Profit before income tax 8. X&HFrieBia M
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ AT EHATRBE &I (GFA) LA
(crediting): TEIBEAEH:
2020 2019
20204 20194
Us$’0oo US$'000
F £ T FET
Auditor’s remuneration = 8D BN &
— Annual audit services — FEBEZRG 102 77
— Other services — H b AR %% 22 418
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & & # 85 (4772 14)
(note 14) 74 72
Amortisation of life insurance policy A E R B % & #
deposits 22 34
Cost of inventories recognised as MR AR ZTFER A
expenses 143,467 89,987
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% -« BB MR & ITE
equipment (note 13) (K1 i13) 557 475
Employee benefit expenses 1 B & F X (B E = % M
(including directors’ remuneration  (#7:£(i)%9))
(notes (i) and 9))
— Salaries, allowances and — H e  EREEREL
bonus 4,149 2,090
— Pension scheme contributions  — K& 5t 21t &
— defined contribution plan — REHREE 217 321
Exchange (gain)/loss, net X (W), BB F5E (641) 56
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8. Profit before income tax (continued)

Note:

(i) Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration) of approximately US$594,000 (2019:
US$401,000), US$1,467,000 (2019: US$835,000) and
US$2,305,000 (2019: US$1,175,000) are included in cost

of sales, selling and distribution expenses and general
and administrative expenses respectively.

9. Directors’ remuneration, five
highest paid employees and senior
management emoluments

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Emoluments paid or payable by the Company
or its subsidiaries undertakings to the directors
of the Company during the year, disclosed

8. RetFiBHaFHEe

K &F -

) BERMNAIEBESH I O
594,000 7t (20194 : 401,000 7t )
1,467,000 7t (20194F : 835,000 JT)
2,305,000 7t (20194F : 1,175,0003%
TP RIFTABEER A - HE RS HH
TR —RERITERAX -

9. EEHMN AERSHES
REREEEMNS

(a) = IE 7 M
REA - BEBEEALTHRUIES
BRRHEG R B 2 AR R E W
BARIMARRESZEN T HEN

pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and BB & 5T -
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is set out
below:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2N Bire
e REWEHN  BERL  GEER it
Uss 00 Uss 00 Uss 00 Uss 00 Uss 000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2020 BEZ020F12RNALEE
Executive diectors: HEE:
Lam Keung g - 222 2 1 256
Qing Haodong Big - 105 65 5 175
Mai Lu £& - 70 65 5 140
Cheng Yu Pik (Vote (7) SFEMW 7)) - 108 65 5 178
- 505 218 26 749
Independent non-executive directors: B FH7TEE:
Dan Kun Lei, Raymond BEE 15 - - - 15
Wong Kwun Ho Rt 15 - - - 15
Lai Man Shun RER 15 - - - 15
45 - - - 45
45 505 218 26 794
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9. Directors’ remuneration, five 9. EEFM -AameFHEE
highest paid employees and senior EEREBEME o
management emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EEFHFMH
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
#4502 Ehe
e REWENM  BEEL  GHEEX At

Us§ooo  US§ooo  Ussboo  Usso0  USSU00
TAL FAT TAT TAT TAL

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE2019E12A31ALERE

Executive directors: HHEE:
Lam Keung g - 181 - 5 186
Qing Haodong i - 67 - 10 77
Mai Lu 3 - 4 - 10 57
— 295 — 25 320
Indlependent non-executive directors: B HHTEZ
Dan Kun Lei, Raymond (Note (i) BREEWH ) 7 - - - 7
Wong Kwun Ho (Vote (i) ERR W) 7 - - - 7
Lai Man Shun (Vo (i) REEW ) 7 — — = 7
21 — — — 21
21 295 — 25 3
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid MPATESEZMHENOEFE
to or for the executive directors are generally EUANREMENBERERER
emoluments in respect of those persons’ other 5 B = 7 R it B AR 75 A9 B
services in connection with the management of ® °
the affairs of the Group.
No any of the directors has waived or agreed to REAR BEESEREXRENR
waive any emoluments during the year (2019: ZT B & (20194 : &) -

Nil).
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9. Directors’ remuneration, five
highest paid employees and senior
management emoluments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

Note:

(i) Ms. Cheng Yu Pik was appointed as the executive
director on 27 March 2020.

(i) Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Wong Kwun Ho
and Mr. Lai Man Shun were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors on 21 June
2019.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 included 3 directors (2019:
2 directors), whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis shown in the note 9(a). The

°0. EEHWN - AEREHES

EEREEBEME o

(a)

(b)

EEHM

RER  AEBBMERES
MEEABRSEMAKRER S MA
NEEZKBE - KEABER
B (2019%F : #&) o

() HFELLR2020F3[27EHE
ERHITESE -

(i) HEEELE EBEXELLELRRE
FRER2019F6A21BEZR T A
BNIEHITES -

AamEHMAL

HZE2020F12A31HIEFEE © &
EEMERESNRERAALTEIE
3REEF(2019F 2% EF) &
B & & 5 M 359(a) BT R 89 2 A
oo RER - ENHEGRE F

emoluments payable to the remaining highest AT ST :
paid individuals during the year is as follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
Salaries, allowances, bonus and ¥ & - 2B - B4 K
benefits in kind B 755 275
Contributions to pension fund R % 7 7
762 282

BREEMBERAF 20204 F
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FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12431H i F &

9. Directors’ remuneration, five 9. EEHNN AEmEHFES
highest paid employees and senior EEREBEME o
management emoluments (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) AEmEHFMAL @
The number of the highest paid employees who AT AME N TR AT R &
are not the directors whose remuneration fell SFMES(WFEF) A :

within the following bands is as follows:

Number of the individuals

A
2020 2019
20204 20194F
Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T
(equivalent to approximately (WEREZZRE
Nil-US$129,000) 129,000 7T) — 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately 77T (#F18129,001%E 7T
US$129,001-US$194,000) %194,000% 7T) 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1,500,001/% 7t £5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately B IT (HF 194,001 7T
US$194,001-US$645,000) £645,000% 7T) 1 —
2 )
10. Income tax expense 10. TS B X
2020 2019
2020 20194
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
Current tax expenses B BA B 18 [ 2
— Hong Kong profits tax — BAEMNEH 192 950
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — AR ERER 392 97
584 1,047
Deferred tax (note 27) B RE I8 (MY aE27) (56) —
528 1,047
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10. RS WX =)

10. Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman (i)
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

(i)  Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong (i)

B it

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

REHRSHEREBERRESHHRA
LER AKEBEARNHERENER
HEARESHMEMAEN -

REFEMEAHMNEHEGE  a&®K

(iii)

Kong, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was
based on the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable
profits of subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the

(iif)

SEEREEH2A BTN G K 1R8.25%
BB R BT - MR B2H &8 TR E
H9216.5% B Bt R BB o AT & R AR
15 B0 2 ) 2 B A% 10 55 (B & 48 6 0 7 8

A 15 1216.5% 1 B TE T R BB

TREMEAERNBEEIREBEFANETR
B 1 25 367 RO B B8 X B FE AT B ADB 1RO

TE Bt R25%1E H (20194F : 25%) ©

PRC during the year (2019: 25%).

A reconciliation of the income tax expenses
applicable to profit before income tax at the
applicable tax rates to income tax expense at the

effective tax rate is as follows:

1% 58 B R 5T E B R P 1S B AT A
BB R PTSB P B R BB B R AT
BN ERAXHNERET:

2020 2019

20204 20194

Uss$’oo0 US$'000

FETT FETT

Profit before income tax R & BT 15 5 B0 A B 2,549 3,560

Tax at domestic income tax rates AT SRR XA BT B 538 630

Effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ 7] 1% B8 Xk /) 57 & 69 467

Effect of non-taxable income BB AR E (69) (39)

Effect of tax concession R IR & 2 (21) (21)
Effect of temporary differences not KAERERZEZBATE

recognised 11 10

Income tax expense FFr 15 %t B 2 528 1,047
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

1. BREH

11. Earnings per share

12.

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is calculated
based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
US$2,021,000 and the weighted average of
800,000,000 ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was calculated
based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
US$2,513,000 and the weighted average of
692,603,000 ordinary shares, comprising:

(i) 100,000 ordinary shares issued as at the
date of the prospectus of the Company
on 29 June 2019 and 599,900,000
ordinary shares issued pursuant to the
capitalisation issue on the completion of
the initial public offering, as if the above
total of 600,000,000 ordinary shares were
outstanding throughout the year ended 31
December 2019; and

(i) 200,000,000 ordinary shares issued on 16

July 2019 by initial public offering.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Dividends

No interim or final dividend was declared for the
year (2019: Nil).

On 27 March 2020, a bonus issue on the basis of
one bonus share for every ten existing shares held
by the shareholders had been proposed by the
directors of the Company, which was rejected by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting dated
on 28 May 2020.
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12.

(a)

(b)

BREFRT

H E2020F12A31B L FE /K
EREXRNZBIEARARARES A
FE 1 £ A F| H 492,021,0003%
TREBEITEBRMNEFSH
800,000,000% 1 & -

HE2019F12A31BILFEN S
ERZFIZANRNEHEE AR
FRFEA2513,000€ T KT
38 A% 0w 15 #1692,603,000 4%
FTE BE:

() RARRBREREABHE
2019F6H29H) 2 % 1T 1
100,000% & ﬁ Hx VI
BEXPHABETHKER
%Félewt?‘éﬁﬁﬁ%*ﬁﬁa’a
599,900, ooon el ]
ﬁut it & $£600,000,000 0%

Lﬂxﬁé%zizo19¢12ﬂ
315&%1@%5%&%?&
N R

BBAEXLAHBEER
2019%F7H16H % 1T ®
200,000,000% & i@ A% °

BikEERF

RATREE2020F12 8318 1
FEMEALEBEH EREMNR
3 ITHEIN(2019F 1 &) o

(i)

iz B

FRMPESREMA P E R E
(2019%F : &) -

MR2020F3A27H AR EEE &

A BSCER BT 5
P AT B By 2 2 B AT AL AR

h+ﬁ§fﬁﬁﬁ§fﬁ}}fﬁ”‘
%R

A% 3R H BA A2020%F5H28H ZHx
RBEFRKZ TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & 220204 12431H 1 F/Z

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. 9% -BMERRE
Furniture, Right-of-
Leasehold fixture and Motor  use assets
improvement equipment vehicles (note) Total
i KB EREsE
HENEEE Rt RE Hiz) it

uss oo uss oo uss o0 uss oo uss oo
FEL FET FEL FEL FET

Cost BE
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H 39 141 90 1,044 1314
Additions AE 73 63 — - 136
Exchange difference ERES (1) (1) - 9) (11)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019E12A31AR

1 January 2020 2020%1A1H il 203 90 1,035 1,439
Additions ME - 400 205 173 778
Exchange difference EREE 6 10 - 59 75
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 17 613 295 1,267 2,292
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H 18 59 80 — 157
Charge for the year ER% 2 23 10 420 475
Fxchange difference EHER - - - @) (2)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A31A R

1 January 2020 202051R1H 40 82 90 418 630
Charge for the year (nofe §) ERX i (His) 4 85 21 40 557
Exchange difference ERES 5 5 — # 51
At 31 December 2020 12020512318 86 172 111 869 1,238
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2020 1220205128318 3 44 184 398 1,054
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12731 Al 121 — 617 809
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

. z _

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. 9% - BERREE=
(Continued)
Note: H &t -
For both years, the Group leased various offices and RREFE AEEHAESETHLAZTRRAE
warehouses for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into EEERAR HESONWETEFHR2FES
for fixed term of 2 years to 5 years and 5 months. Lease terms FE5EA HEHKEANEEZEBRES
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range ZETAABGARGEH BREBARERESR
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not ENEAERI - BEWHE I EEMNERRZ
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the o HMEAETSREMRER -

leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Amount included in the consolidated statements of cash flow FELRERBRTEREENRELOT
comprise the following:

2020 2019

2020 20194

Uss$’000 US$°000

F 25T FZET

Total cash outflow for leases HEZHSRERE 444 453
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

4. ML &S E

14. Intangible assets

FEVBHRRME

Customer
relationship
(note) Software Total
EEH %
(KtaE) &% &t
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$°’000
FE T FEIT FETT
Cost &
At 1 January 2019, 31 R2019F1H18 -
December 2019 and 2019F12 A31H
1 January 2020 & 20201 H1H 300 —_ 300
Addition NE _ 18 18
At 31 December 2020 2020%12A31H 300 18 318
Accumulated amortisation 2 5t &
At 1 January 2019 MR2019F1 A1H 139 — 139
Charge for the year FAXZ M 72 — 72
At 31 December 2019 and R2019%12 A31H
1 January 2020 20201 H1H 211 — 211
Charge for the year (note 8) FANZH (B E8) 72 2 74
At 31 December 2020 #2020%F12AH318 283 2 285
Net carrying amount MRmEFEE
At 31 December 2020 #2020%F12A318 17 16 33
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 H31H 89 — 89
Note: Hiat -

The customer relationship have finite useful lives in the range
from 4 to 7 years (2019: 4 to 7 years) and are amortised on a
straight-line basis.

The useful lives of the customer relationship under intangible
assets arising from the business combination of Shenzhen IH
Technology Company Limited (“Shenzhen IH”), Shanghai IH
Microelectronics Technology Company Limited (“Shanghai IH")
and Chengdu Flying Electronics Limited (“Chengdu Flyring”)
was determined by the independent valuer at 5 years, 7 years
and 4 years respectively. It was taken into consideration that the
economic benefits expected to be generated from the use of the
customer relationship would diminish over time due to attrition
and time value of money.

P EFRENEBERHRRFI4ETE (2019
FAETE) REGEHENE -

R JIl i 208 4% 6l 5% AT A R A A (T3 IR
D EBREWEFRMARAR (LR
EDOERHARREFARAD (EBRIR] D
EBEHEENENEER THEPBEA
EAFHPRBILEEMD BIIRSF - 76 k45
BE CEBIBANERTFPAEELN
KENBGEREEZESEERLEREE
BEmRED -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

15. Goodwill 15. @ 2

2020 2019
20204 20194
Us$’000 US$'000
F £ T FET

Cost and net carrying amount AR IRE S
At 1 January R1A18 261 264
Exchange difference fE N E=% 18 (3)
At 31 December W12 A31H 279 261

Goodwill was arising from the acquisition of
Shenzhen IH on 16 November 2016. For the
purpose of impairment testing on goodwill,
management allocated goodwill to the operating
performance of Shenzhen IH.

The recoverable amount of the operating subsidiary
located in the PRC is determined based on value
in use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year
period. The pre-tax discount rates used of 12%
(2019: 13%) for the operating subsidiary located in
the PRC. Management determined the budgeted
gross margin based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The cash
flows beyond five years have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2019: 3%) per annum growth
rate.
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Rk {20165 11 A16 B Uk BE Z |
Dk - AHEEETRENR B8
BESEENsEZ FIIREENKEE

MRAFEMLENBARMNITKE S
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EHEFEREREEBH AN TSEH
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FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&

15. Goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of each operating subsidiary located in
the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:-

Business growth rate — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted sales during the
five-year projection period is the sales growth rate
achieved in the prior year immediately before the
budget year.

Pre-tax discount rates — The pre-tax discount rates
used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on
each operating subsidiary located in the PRC are
consistent with external information sources.

Management has calculated that the value in use
of the operating subsidiary located in the PRC and
concluded that the recoverable amount is greater
than their total carrying amount of the assets of
the subsidiary including allocated goodwill and
therefore has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the Group’s goodwill during the year
(2019: Nil).

The directors of the Company have not identified
any key assumptions where a reasonably possible
change in such assumptions could cause the
carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount.

15. B & (&)

H E2020F12A31B L FEE - U R
HH L ENBARNEREEDE
RETREJETHE - THAEEE
FETREESRETEIAGEEETR
ERREMREOSEBRERSER: —

$EER — RIS TR AR
EroRTEENEENBEML
MR TR 2 B — ) 0
B o

BMATH AR — ERANHATRERS
HRAWTRE KRBT EBRET
BRANBERR -

ol

SRTFTURFEHZEEMNBEAR

ARBRENEERINEEES
B o

BEECDHESHAR BB EEH
BRAAMNEREE AELHATK@E
BEERNENBAREEAREEER
EokemEB)NGm  FILFAR
£ B M B I OB E (2019%F « &) ©

ARBIEZYEERE(HELSE
5 Bh B A] 28 B 2 ) B (BB AT R
O] < #8 Y B S R AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

16. \ERERE

16. Life insurance policy deposits

Certain life insurance policies (the “Policies”) with
a carrying amount approximately US$1,427,000
(2019: US$1,403,000) were entered into by the
Group to insure two of the directors of the Company,
Mr. Lam Keung (“Mr. Lam”), and Ms. Cheng Yu
Pik. Under the Policies, the beneficiary and policy
holder is the Group and the total insured sum was
approximately US$6,737,000 (2019: US$6,737,000)
as at 31 December 2020. During the year ended
31 December 2019, at the inception of the Policies,
the Group paid upfront payments of approximately
US$524,000. The Group can terminate the Policies
at any time and can receive cash back based on
the net nominal account value of the Policies at the
date of withdrawal. Interest is earned at interest
rates of at least those guaranteed by the insurer.

The directors of the Company expected that the
Policies with upfront payment of approximately
US$376,000 will be terminated at the 38th policy
year in 2053, approximately US$265,000 will
be terminated at the 40th policy year in 2058,
approximately US$260,000 will be terminated
at the 43rd policy year in 2061, approximately
US$224,000 will be terminated at the 45th policy
year in 2065 and approximately US$300,000 will
be terminated at the 45th policy year in 2065
respectively. There will be a specified surrender
charge of approximately US$55,000, US$37,000
and US$23,000, US$28,000 and US$75,000 in
accordance with each policy respectively. The
expected life of the Policies remained unchanged
from the date of initial recognition and the directors
of the Company considered that the financial impact
of the option to terminate the Policies was not
significant.
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AREBF Y BRMEEL A1,427,000% 7T
(20194F : 1,403,000% 70) )& FTASE
RBRE(RE]  BAXARAMABE
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RERE BERE ZZmAER
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31HA R 42 ¢ %841 /56,737,0003E 7T
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REME  AREBBEREE2019F12
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T8 1+ 3K #9524,0003 JT ° AN B 7]
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B B 1K F = W ER A B, o

ARARMEFREH ANRHORB

376,000 7T MY 1R B 1§ 1R20534F %
BBEREFERIE BRAROAE
265,0003 JT B 1R 5 1§ 120584 &
AWEREFERLE BRAROAB
260,0003 JT B 1R & #§ R 20614F F
ABEAREFERLE - BRAROYBE
224,0003 7T H) 1R B #§ 120654 &

AEAREFEXREREBENROB
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16. Life insurance policy deposits
(Continued)

The carrying amount of upfront payments will be
adjusted through consolidated profit or loss through
the expected life of the Policies to reflect the interest
earned and life insurance coverage and other
charges during each year of the expected life. The
Policies were pledged to a bank to secure bills
payables (note 22) and bank borrowings (note 26)
granted to the Group.

17. Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

16. A\SRERE W)

BNREEESREREBRHFR
REEREPHAE  URREFTRH
FROMEBNERASZSHRBIALE
ER REDEFTRITAELAS
B RN R & (M iE22) RRTTER
(Fft £ 26) -

17. 2R BEFARbZE W =
&R & E

2020 2019
2020 20194
Us$’000 US$'000
FETT FET
Financial assets at FVTOCI ANABEFAHMEEK R
— Unlisted equity securities in BVI, — R EBHEBRABEEMIEL
Cosmic Paramount Limited A& % + Cosmic
(“Cosmic”) Paramount Limited
([Cosmic)) 6,160 —

During the year, the Group entered into (i) the
conditional Sale and Purchase Agreement
together with the supplemental agreement with the
independent vendor in relation to the acquisition
of 781 shares of Cosmic (the “Acquisition”) and
(i) conditional Subscription Agreement together
with the supplemental agreement to subscribe 148
shares of Cosmic (the “Subscription”). After the
completion of the Acquisition and the Subscription
on 31 December 2020, the Group held in aggregate
9.07% equity interest in Cosmic.

RER REBGHEBLIEH KW
BB CosmicH 781 RN ET B I& 14+ E
EpmEkErxha((WEBEIE]) &
(T BRHERERZ LT HE
LA B Cosmic 148X Ik 10 ([sR B
H]) - WEEE1E KRB EEM2020
F12A3BTKE - ASEEH£KFE
CosmicHJ9.07% A& # -
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17. 2R BEFAREbZEW =

17. Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

The considerations of the Acquisition and the
Subscription were settled by the issuance of
promissory notes (note 24) with an aggregate
principal amounts of approximately HK$49,955,000
(equivalent to approximately US$6,446,000) at
the fair value of approximately HK$47,737,000
(equivalent to approximately US$6,160,000) on 31
December 2020, which was, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, approximated to the fair
value of the equity interest in Cosmic measured by
the independent valuation expert.

The above unlisted equity securities are designated
as financial assets at FVTOCI (non-recycling) as the
investment is held for long-term strategic purposes.
Cosmic, through its operating subsidiary which is
incorporated in Hong Kong, is principally engaged
in one-stop supply chain financial platform, which
provides global supply chain services, booking
online by clicking one button.

The details of the fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 are set out in note 33. No
dividends were received on this investment during
the year (2019: Nil).
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FEVBHRRME

Inventories 18. & &
2020 2019
20204 20194
US$°000 US$'000
FE T FETT
Finished goods B X mh 11,762 12,909
At 31 December 2020, certain inventories with MR2020F12 A31H » LB KRFHE 4

original cost amounting to approximately US$26,000
(2019: US$35,000) were fully impaired.

26,0003 7T (20194F : 35,0003 7T)
NETEFEEZEEE -

Trade and bills receivables 19. B 5 FE W =R IE & FE W 2 2
2020 2019
20204 20194
Us$’000 US$’000
F E T FE T
Trade receivables B 5 e W KIA 35,600 24,487
Less: allowance for ECL on trade & : ‘fﬁ%%ﬂﬁf HNESEE
receivables BB (394) (126)
Trade receivables, net B 5 e W FRIEFRE 35,206 24,361
Bills receivables (note 26(b)) fEWE & (K iF26(b)) 395 1,335
35,601 25,696

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers where
payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period granted is based on the historical
trading and payment records of each customer,
generally not more than four months. Extended
credit terms may be granted for some major long-
term customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. Except as described below, the
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances.

rEEREXFNEZKRAREENUE
fﬁTJi BREERIN BEFTE
FERRIE - EEHKBREREFPNAT
X%&H,ﬂﬁﬁ&% BENEB
WEA rAleemE TEERARFER
TEREEH - NEB HRKRFEK
B EFE U R IE ) B AR 6 W R A2
EEfIBARNMEERR - aRE
BEEStnETecHEZz - &
SREWKIBLE o RTXATAsIN + &
SEVEREESRIWKIBESRTR
E 3 sk HAn iNoR {5 A M o
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19. B BRI R FEW E R

19. Trade and bills receivables (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group entered into a receivable purchase
arrangement (the “Arrangement”) with a bank to
discounted part of the trade receivables of the
particular trade debtor with full recourse to a bank.
At 31 December 2020, the Group discounted
trade receivables with a carrying amount of
approximately US$5,583,000 (2019: Nil). Under
the Arrangement, the Group may be required to
reimburse the bank for loss of interest if the trade
debtor has late payment up to 180 days. The
interest was charged at a rate of 2% per annum
over the higher of (i) LIBOR and (ii) the cost of fund
of a bank on the proceeds received from the bank
until the day the trade debtor paid. The Group was
therefore exposed to the risks of credit losses and
late payment in respect of the discounted debts.
In the opinion of the directors, the discounting
transactions did not meet the requirements in
HKFRS 9 for derecognition of financial assets as
the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards of ownership of the discounted trade
debts, which include default risks relating to such
discounted trade receivables, and accordingly, it
continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of approximately US$5,583,000 (2019: Nil) of the
discounted trade receivables.

The proceeds of the discounting arrangement
were included in bank borrowings as asset-backed
financing until the trade debts were collected or
the Group settled any losses suffered by the bank.
At 31 December 2020, the asset-backed financial
liability amounted to approximately US$5,025,000
(2019: Nil) (note 26).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 124314 1 F /&
19. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 19. B 5 FE W =R I8 X FE W 4

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
ECL allowances, based on the past due dates, is as

(&)

REBHEHZ I E 5 EKHIA
(RIBGEHNEERERB RED

follows: BT
2020 2019
2020 20194
Us$°000 Us$'000
FETT FET
Neither past due nor impaired K8 BA SO (B 20,495 15,317
1-30 days past due #HI1ZE 30K 6,936 4,351
31-90 days past due #HI31E 90K 5,464 2,408
91-120 days past due #HI91E 120K 651 27
More than 120 days past due B H B 120K 1,660 2,258
35,206 24,361

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills
receivables are set out in note 33.

The movements in allowances for ECL on trade
receivables are as follows:

B 5 e Wk IR & e W R 4R R (B RE (A
Z BRI FE33 -

EoRWABEBBEHECEEGRBEHFS
E RN

2020 2019

20204 20194

Uss$’000 US$'000

FETT FETT

At 1 January M1A1H 126 91
Written off of trade receivables i iH 2 5 SR IB — (76)

Allowances for ECL recognised to TEHI{Z EE 8% &5

the consolidated profit or loss RiraBEPHER 268 111
At 31 December M®12 8318 394 126

BREEMBERAF 20204 F

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 H31H i1 F /&

19. BESBARIEREWER

19. Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The above provision for net allowance for ECL on
trade receivables are included allowances by using
a provision matrix and individually impaired trade
receivables. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and all receivables are not expected to be
recovered. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has been informed that those
customers are under liquidation and unable to repay
the trade receivables.

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables,
net of ECL allowance, based on the invoice dates, is
as follows:

(&)

LHFRMNESEURIBREBREE
EBEEHTIE BREAREER
MERHREE S REWKFIEEE - @
AR (B FE Ue FX I8 T R B S IR 2
MEFBB - B8 EWNEETE
A YgE - #E2019F12 A31H IEF
B AEEESEANZERFAKREE
BELEEZESEIWFKIE -

REZZAHMENAEEE S EW
REHGKEREEBEREER WK
i U

2020 2019

20205 20194

Uss’ooo Us$'000

FET TET

1-30 days 1230k 14,338 9,364
31-90 days 31E90K 14,527 9,540
91-120 days 91&120K 3,537 2,161
Over 120 days #E@120K 2,804 3,296
35,206 24,361

Ageing analysis of the Group’s bills receivables,
based on the bills receipt dates as at each reporting
date is as follows:

REZBWIRBHAERE®RERH
MASEERKEEMNRE SO

2020 2019

20204 20194

Us$’000 US$'000

FETT FET

1-30 days 1230k 154 411
31-90 days 31290K 142 700
91-120 days 91%E 120K — 41
Over 120 days B iB120K 99 183
395 1,335

As at 31 December 2020, all bills receivables were
neither past due nor impaired (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & 220204 12431H 1 F/Z

20. Prepayments, deposits and other

20. AT RRIE - HERHEMBEK

receivables I8
2020 2019
2020 20194
uss’ooo US$'000
FE T FETT
Prepayments (note (a)) e RIB (B 7t (@) 1,267 2,676
Accrued purchase rebates FE 51 B8 B B 30 (&7 7% (b))

(note (b)) 2,574 6,969
Rental and utilities deposits Mk AREEZ2 101 95
Other receivab